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In face of the sustained diversified competition in the
bakery market, Christine International Holdings Limited (the
“Company” or “Christine”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
"Group”), failed to transform after various attempts, continued
with the previous performance review in 2015 and strived to
close down loss-making stores, cutting the mounting operating
loss.

In 2015, as a approach to cutting loss, the Group continued
with its store-closure strategy in 2014 and shut down 192
stores that were underperformed, resulting in an operating
revenue of RMB1,062,000,000, representing a decrease of
15.27% as compared to the previous period. The closure has
also reduced costs and expenses but the operation still recorded
losses of approximately RMB148,000,000, representing a
decrease of 1.61% as compared to the corresponding period
of last year. Basic loss per share amounted to approximately
RMB14.7 cents.

In spite of losses, the Company’s financial position remained
healthy. Through reduction in operating and capital
expenditure, as at 31 December 2015, the balance of cash
and cash equivalents (including the deposit and withdrawal
of deposits during sales of pre-paid cards in accordance
with government’s requirement) of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB569,690,000 in total, representing an
increase of 3.68% as compared to the corresponding period of
last year. The Group had no financing obtained from financial
or private institutions, and had adequate cash available for the
Company’s normal development and operation.

Closure of stores that were underperformed to
minimize loss

Since certain stores that were old or at inferior location were
inefficient, we followed the established store-closure policy in
2015, and closed down stores that belong to this type in each
business area immediately. Despite an impact on turnover, the
curb on loss expansion started to take effect.
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Taking opportunity of clarification of government’s
order for proactive promotion of pre-paid cards
(coupons)

In early 2015, the government clarified on the restriction
order on consumption, explaining to state-owned enterprises
and government bodies that employees’ benefits shall not be
sacrificed to anti-corruption measures. Taking advantage of
such situation, the Group promoted the long-suspended pre-
paid cards (coupons) to the fullest with general mobilization,
resulting in a like-for-like increase of 13.58% in the balance of
outstanding cards (coupons) at the end of year.

Improvement in food safety to maintain sound
quality

Food safety is always the biggest risk to the food industry.
Nowadays, with board coverage of food safety as well as huge
and interconnected supply chains in bakery, food safety control
becomes more complicated than before. In spite of unfavorable
sales performance, the Group devoted to tighten control on
raw materials, production, delivery and display in response to
quality demand to secure the food safety of the Company.

2015 marked a year of austerity. Under the subjective and
objective conditions that sales revenue did not grow as
expected, the Group adopted a downsizing strategy that close
stores to cut point of sale with low commercial value as well as
to reduce expenses, for the purpose of curbing loss expansion.

Nevertheless, given the impact on operation ratio of factories
and gross profit of commodities of excessive closure of stores,
retail downsizing will no longer be the focus of the coming
year. Instead, we will concentrate on the consolidation and
usage of internal and external resources, particularly making
use of current resources to promote new commodities and
businesses, for factories to preserve production value and
stores to improve channel value as well as expecting efficiency
in the shortest time.
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As the business environment changes, the current business
type of the Group, which fails to keep up with the times, is
facing a re-adjustment of geographical distribution. Since
brand recognition of the Company of stores in cities and
business area, where more expenditure than profit is incurred,
is higher than that of peripheral administrative area, we will
focus on the expansion in the former area.

As a listed company, apart from making corresponding
investment that complies with relevant national laws and
reaches statutory standard in terms of environmental policy,
the Group have also referred to the practices of industry
players in developed counties and prepared for sustainable
management and self-improvement.

During this unsatisfactory year, the Group appreciates
shareholders who have been a longtime supporter of the
Group for their suggestions, which give us great insight
and always remind and encourage the operation team and
| to respond to the market with innovation and change.
Nonetheless, more efforts are needed to turn loss into profit.
We will bear failure in mind and learn from mistakes, aiming at
providing returns to shareholders.

Staff are always the pillars for the Company. During the
downsizing, some fellows, despite our unwillingness,
left the Company. The fellows who stay behind shoulder
heavy responsibility and difficult tasks, and are committed
to contribute to the Company. We thank for their selfless
contribution, which is the motivation for the Company to move
forward.

In spite of the decrease in turnover and the corresponding
reduction in purchase amount, we are grateful for the long-
time support from suppliers who persevere in quality and time
and aim for the prime target for satisfying the production of
the Group all along.

We sincerely express our gratitude to all of you once again.
With all your support, we believe that the Company will turn
out for the best at a rapid pace!
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Operating Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s operating revenue for the years of
2015 and 2014 is set out as follows:

—E-HFE ZT-MEE
2015 2014
AR¥TT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
-ELON BEER EEWA EEER
Gross Gross
Operating Operating Operating Operating
Revenue Profit Revenue Profit
772,213 299,336 909,205 350,330
94,810 77,909 93,754 79,807
118,218 71,964 157,671 102,005
76,509 52,009 92,480 59,821
1,061,750 501,218 1,253,110 591,963

The Group's operating revenue was approximately
RMB1,061,750,000 in 2015, representing a decrease of
approximately 15.27% as compared to approximately
RMB1,253,110,000 in 2014. The decrease in revenue was
mainly attributable to the closure of certain loss-making stores
in the second half of 2014 and in 2015. The total net decrease
in the number of stores was 292, from 1,052 stores at the end
of 2013 to 760 at the end of 2015, of which 192 were closed
during 2015, which in turn drove a reduction in turnover. With
the slowdown of the competition in the bakery industry and
market consumption as well as the prolonged limitation on
sales of mooncakes from the orders promulgated by the PRC
government, the growth rate of overall same-store sales was
-7.33%.

In addition, in terms of geographical locations, sales revenue
from the Group’s retail outlets in Shanghai accounted for
approximately 59.99% of the Group'’s revenue for 2015, which
slightly decreased from 61.00% in 2014. Shanghai was still
the main source of the Group's revenue. Since we adopted
a business model of selling food delivered from factories in
traditional retail outlets, we were less competitive than those
bakeries that sell freshly baked food, resulting from a closure
of 113 stores, representing 58.85% of the net decrease in the
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number of retail outlets during the year. Operating revenue in
this area of 2015 decreased approximately by RMB127,482,000
or approximately 16.68% as compared to 2014. The strategic
outlets closure led to a decrease in operating revenue
in each business area. Jiangsu and Zhejiang provinces
recorded a decrease in operating revenue of approximately
RMB47,854,000 and RMB12,275,000, respectively, or 14.99%
and 7.41%, respectively, as compared to 2014. Retail outlets in
Anhui province were closed because of inefficiency.

In terms of product categories, turnover from our main
products in 2015, such as bread and cakes, decreased by
approximately RMB136,992,000 or 15.07% as compared
to 2014, following the reduction in the number of retail
outlets. At the same time, the sales volume of pastries and
others went down by RMB39,453,000 and RMB15,970,000,
respectively or 25.02% and 17.27%, respectively, due to the
unclear marketing positioning of products. Since sending
moon cakes as gifts using public funds during the Mid-Autumn
Festival was discouraged, hindering the growth of the moon
cake consumption market in 2015. However, the Group's
turnover from moon cakes slightly increased by approximately
RMB1,056,000 or 1.13% as compared to 2014.

In terms of payment methods, the Group's revenue in
retail outlets was settled either in cash (and bank card)
payment or through redemption of coupons (and pre-paid
cards). In 2015, revenue settled by cash (and bank cards)
amounted to approximately RMB627,284,000, accounting
for 59.08% of the total revenue, representing a decrease of
approximately 6.84% as compared to RMB673,357,000 in
2014. Sales revenue through redemption of coupons (and
pre-paid cards) slowed down and amounted to approximately
RMB434,466,000 in 2015, accounting for 40.92% of the total
revenue, representing a decrease of approximately 25.06% as
compared to RMB579,753,000 in 2014.

Gross Operating Profit

The Group's gross operating profit was approximately
RMB501,218,000 in 2015, representing a decrease of
approximately 15.33% as compared to RMB591,963,000 in
2014. The range of decrease in gross profit was in proportion
to the level of decrease in turnover. Gross profit margin for the
year was approximately 47.21%. Despite the fact that labor
costs increased due to the national mandatory adjustment of
minimum wage, certain major raw materials were acquired at
a favorable price through bulk purchase and bargain by the
Group. Therefore, the overall gross profit margin remained
similar to that of 2014, which was 47.24%.
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Other Income

Other income of the Group decreased by approximately
RMB4,384,000 from approximately RMB18,160,000 in
2014 to approximately RMB13,776,000 in 2015, primarily
attributable to a decrease in interest income of approximately
RMB2,074,000 and a decrease in government subsidies of
approximately RMB2,310,000.

Other Gain and Loss

The Group’s other gain and loss amounted to a net loss of
approximately RMB33,320,000 in 2015, representing an
increase in loss of approximately RMB4,804,000 as compared
to a net loss of approximately RMB28,516,000 in 2014. It was
mainly due to the increase in provision for impairment of assets
of approximately RMB 12,485,000 as compared to the previous
period, in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard
36 (HKAS 36), the operating loss incurred in consecutive years
and the slight increase in the appropriation of unredeemed
prepaid coupons of approximately RMB2,073,000 as compared
to the previous period.

Selling Expenses

Affected by the strategic closure of certain loss-making
stores, selling expenses decreased by approximately
RMB86,771,000 from approximately RMB628,442,000 in 2014
to approximately RMB541,671,000 in 2015. Despite the effect
of the ongoing increase in the labour minimum wage imposed
by the local government and the influence from social welfare
and security system on salary cost, annual salary expenses
still decreased by approximately RMB15,813,000 because
of the outlet closure. Rental expenses, utility expenses, and
amortization and depreciation on repair expenses thereupon
decreased by approximately RMB23,165,000, RMB12,714,000,
RMB6,147,000 and RMB 1,085,000, respectively. Expenses
for paper boxes and bags as well as transportation decreased
by approximately RMB4,944,000 and RMB9,625,000, as
sales of all types of products were diminished with the
cutdown on stores. Since less advertising efforts were made as
compared to the last period, relevant expenses also reduced by
approximately RMB6,540,000.
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Administrative Expenses

Following the cost reduction policy in the last period,
administrative expenses decreased by approximately
RMB3,585,000 from approximately RMB88,303,000 in 2014
to approximately RMB84,718,000 in 2015. It was mainly due
to the reduction in operating size and the downsizing of back
office operation. As the Group laid off certain employees from
different functional departments, related staff costs reduced by
approximately RMB3,336,000.

Other Expenses

Other expenses increased by approximately RMB233,000
from approximately RMB 1,485,000 in 2014 to approximately
RMB1,718,000 in 2015.

Share of profit of an Associate

Share of profit of an associate was approximately RMB382,000
in 2015, which was generated by profit from investment,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB281,000 as
compared with the profit of approximately RMB663,000 in
2014.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses decreased by approximately
RMB12,525,000 from approximately RMB14,825,000 in 2014
to approximately RMB2,300,000 in 2015. It was mainly due to
the decrease in both effective corporate income tax paid and
deferred income tax from the previous period.

Net profits and total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to shareholders

Net losses decreased by approximately RMB2,434,000 from net
losses of approximately RMB150,785,000 in 2014 to net losses
of approximately RMB148,351,000 in 2015. Net profit margin
decreased from —12.03% in 2014 t0 -13.97%.
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Inventory Turnover Days

The following table sets forth the inventory turnover days for
2015 and 2014:

BE+-—A=1+—-HLEFE
For the years
ended 31 December

—F-1F —TlF

2015 2014

FEREXS(KEE) Inventory turnover days (Note) 20 20
MiFE:  FEBEERBIRGEE YRR G2 Gl T ER A R 2 Note:  Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the arithmetic mean of

HERA - BRA36SRATESH °

FEETEOERNHRERS  — T AR EEBENE
— T NEHER - FEKERE -

ESRUREEERY

TR —E-AR_B-FEEHRRFURBERH

the opening and closing balance of inventories divided by cost of sales
for the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

The Group's inventories consist of raw materials and finished
goods. Inventory turnover days were the same for 2015 and
2014. The inventory levels were similar.

Trade Receivables Turnover Days

The following table sets forth the trade receivables turnover
days for 2015 and 2014:

BE+-—A=+—HLFE
For the years ended
31 December

—E-REF —ZT—mE
2015 2014
B 5 W ImRE R S (M) Trade receivables turnover days (Note) 6 5

fia . BESEUGURBEREINZE SRR LIRSS 2 HiTT

ERABREHRZHERA - BRU36SRETESG -

BHRYSATERATEEBRAES - BT ARUKE 5K
B HBBRB T -LFE_T-NFHEE -

Note: Trade receivables turnover days are calculated based on the arithmetic
mean of the opening and closing balance of trade receivables divided by
the sales revenue for the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

Trade receivables are mainly for revenue generated from
principal businesses and outstanding receivables, with turnover
days generally the same for both 2015 and 2014.

wHRIHSTEIEER AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited —Z—Af 4% Annual Report 2015



g 5 B WRE 2 iR

TREDIFTR AR BB 5 YR 2 R DT -

RES Age
0~30K 0 to 30 days
31~60K 31 to 60 days

61~90K 61 to 90 days
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Age of Trade Receivables

The following table is an aged analysis of trade receivables of
the Group as at the dates indicated:

R+=HA=+—H

As of 31 December
—E—EF T
2015 2014
AR®T T AREETTT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
12,338 13,661
348 773
381 449
3,205 910
506 368
16,778 16,161

The Group’s sales were mainly settled either in cash and
through redemption of coupons and pre-paid cards by
customers. There was no credit payment for transactions
which took place in the Group’s self-operated retail outlets.
However, for those retail outlets located in department stores
or supermarkets, lessors who provided those sites usually
collected the sales revenue on the Group's behalf and settled
such amounts within 30 to 60 days thereafter.

Trade Payables Turnover Days

The following table sets forth the trade payables turnover days
for 2015 and 2014:

BE+-A=+—BHLFE
For the years ended
31 December

—E-HF TN
2015 2014
B SN aEE xS (M) Trade payables turnover days (Note) 39 36

M ESRENFUEBEXETIREBHEGRNE S RN REEBROEN
FHERABRIRAEERAS - BRUSKAHESGS -

Note: Trade payables turnover days are calculated based on the arithmetic
mean of the opening and closing balance of trade payables divided by
the cost of sales for the relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.
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0~45K% 0 to 45 days
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61~90K% 61 to 90 days
91~180K 91 to 180 days
HEiE180K Over 180 days

HEEENE NIRRT R45~60K - HA BN 81
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Ta bR =X

TEWIR R EZREREFRENENRHER - ARAEERE
BT RSP SN - AETEN RIEBAR i E i
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Age of Trade Payables

R+=-—A=+—8

As of 31 December
—E-RfF —E—UE
2015 2014
AR¥T T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
50,504 52,569
5,033 7,444
352 2,897
- 109
535 452
56,424 63,471

The credit terms for trade payables due to suppliers generally
range from 45 to 60 days. Other payables include wage
payables and sundry payables.

Deposits from Customers

Deposits from customers mainly include payments received
from customers for pre-paid cards and coupons. Since the
Group strengthened the sales capability of its e-commerce
department, sales of pre-paid cards through online promotion
increased during the period. Together with the strategic
closure of certain loss-making stores, fewer locations were
available for redemption of issued pre-paid cards and coupons,
resulting in a higher balance of outstanding pre-paid cards and
coupons as at the end of 2015 than the inventory as at the end
of 2014. Deposits from customers increased by approximately
RMB66,806,000.
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As at 31 December 2015, cash and bank deposits amounted
to approximately RMB517,990,000, representing an
increase of approximately RMB9,445,000 as compared
to RMB508,545,000 as at the end of 2014, which was
mainly attributable to the net cash inflow of approximately
RMB74,318,000 from operating activities during the year due
to the decrease in expenses under the effect of closure of stores
and growth in sales of pre-paid cards and coupons. Net cash
outflow from investing activities amounted to approximately
RMB64,873,000 due to the purchase of debenture products
and addition of production assets. There was no net cash flow
incurred from financing activities.

The current ratio for 2015 was 107.85%, which was slightly
lower than that of 120.74% for 2014. However, this indicated
our satisfactory solvency and well-established financial
structure.

As at the end of 2015 and 2014, the Group's gearing ratio,
calculated by dividing total liabilities by total assets, was
approximately 45.64% and 39.68%, respectively. The increase
in gearing ratio was mainly due to the rise in sales of coupons
and pre-paid cards and the slowdown of redemption speed.

Debentures

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has not issued any
debentures.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.
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Payment Commitments

According to the lease contracts in relation to retail outlets
as at 31 December 2015, the Group’s future minimum lease
payment under non-cancellable operating leases amounted
to approximately RMB225,143,000, while capital expenditure
in relation to the acquisition of fixed assets such as property,
plant and equipment not included in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to approximately RMB21,919,000.

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Group's assets was
pledged.

Capital Structure and Pledged Assets

The Group retained a rather healthy financial position as at 31
December 2015 without any bank borrowings, pledged assets
and notes payable. Total equity amounted to approximately
RMB780,446,000, representing a decrease of approximately
15.89%. As at 31 December 2015, the capital structure of
the Company comprised 1,010,188,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.00001 each.

Foreign Exchange and Interest Rate Exposure

As the Group conducts business transactions principally in
Renminbi and our offshore capital was mainly deposited
in foreign banks as offshore Renminbi, the management
considered the exchange rate risk at the Group’s operational
level not significant. Accordingly, the Group had not used any
financial instruments for hedging purposes as at 31 December
2015.
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Capital expenditures of the Group for the year of 2015 were as

follows:
b= ARBFT
Items RMB'000
HEBKFE BE IR gEE
Developing the sales network Purchases, new fitting-out and repairs 11,109
EERE
Operation equipment 2,283
et
Sub-total 13,392
EERLIETR B
Expanding production capacity Plant 19,063
HERME
Production equipment 3,053
et
Sub-total 22,116
BEYEBERITH BRI
Capital expenditure of back office administration IT software 215
BIES
Staff dormitory 1,285
It
Sub-total 1,500
BEARX AT
Total capital expenditures 37,008

HEBREAHBEAREFERE7RCRNGRMAPE)
TREEEPURINEMARKAEE  ERERIEZRERTH
BRBGES T MR RBRE  RPEAIHAIRSERRES
SRR REE -

Capital expenditure arising from developing the sales network
included the project of a total of 7 outlets (before excluding
closed outlets) operated by the Group during the year and
the external and internal maintenance of the existing outlets.
Capital expenditure arising from the expansion of production
capacity was mainly attributed to the expenses for renovation
of plants in Ningbo and acquisition of machinery and
equipment. Capital expenditure of back office administration
was attributed to the reinforcement and decoration of the old
dormitory of the Company.
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Since certain loss-making stores were closed and the sales
personnel and corresponding back office were massively
downsized in 2015, the Group's total number of employees
was decreased to 5,793 as at 31 December 2015, with the
major staff being sales staff in stores. Total annual payroll
amounted to approximately RMB355,740,000. Although the
amount of total annual payroll was lower than that of the
previous period, it still accounted for 33.51% of the operating
revenue, representing an increase, as compared to 30.19%
in 2014. In addition to fixed wages, our employees may be
granted departmental and personal allowances and year-end
bonuses subject to performance appraisal.

Currently, apart from carrying out the store-closure plans and
staff downsizing, the Group positively encourages staff in their
commitment to performance. With share option and bonus
incentives as well as the aim to achieve results, the Group
imposes rewards by grades.

Market Outlook

Despite the sluggish economy in the PRC, growth in the bakery
market is expected to continue at a rate of 11.6% in 2016,
with an income amounting to USD12.91 billion. That said, the
burgeoning efforts of the peers in the industry, via multiple
channels, had adversely affected the business volume of
individual chain-branded stores. As such, the key to success lies
in the pursuit of innovation and change in our products and
businesses.

The diversified competition in retail business exhibited
industry crisis and opportunities. Chain stores, outlets,
supermarkets, convenience stores and certain peers of chain
stores or e-commerce business all demonstrated demand for
outsourcing, creating additional business opportunities to the
Company currently undergoing overcapacity.
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In respect of the retail stores, the bakery market has captured
more younger consumers. Although the brand has gained
support from loyal customers of the Group who are within a
senior age band, the changing generation in the consumer
group has adversely affected the results of the Company.
Therefore, the primary marketing strategy of future products of
the Company will focus on young people.

With the belief that gourmet is the ultimate goal of food
retailing, the Group has devised the following marketing
strategies targeting at different customer groups:

1. With reference to the current consumption norm of our
existing products in the older consumer group, recipes
of specific products will be modified with regard to the
fundamentals of healthy eating, which are depicted by
the reduced use of oil, salt and sugar in the preparation
of food, and thus, product freshness and delicacy can
be retained for the existing consumer group.

2. To reach younger generations as our source of new
customers, our marketing approaches will include
establishing stores with new and fresh decorations,
focusing on the product designs, rolling out sweet and
ungreasy new products to trigger the senses of vision
and taste of young people, and to attract those among
the youth who have rarely favored our products.

In response to the overall trend of the industry, the Group
has recently adopted the marketing strategies of outsourcing
its external capacity, optimizing product taste and promoting
products to the younger generations.

The Company intends to fund the aforesaid initiatives with the
Group's internal funds. Save as disclosed above, the Company
had not formulated plans for material investments or capital
assets for 2016.
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To improve the attractiveness of our products in stores and
the capacity utilization of plants, the work of the research and
development center of the Group in 2016 is highlighted as
follows:

1. Improving the attractiveness of our products in stores:
° Developing products that cater for the young
generation

The Group mostly sells traditionally packaged
pastries and breads. With long-term patronage,
our major customers are loyal to the Group.
Due to the change in generation of customers,
the Group will focus on developing trendy
products that taste amazing and flavorful and
look original to cater for the young generation
in the current year. The development includes
changing the frying process and fillings,
adhering to new health concepts such as
probiotics and high fiber, and improving cheese
products and Danish pastries.

° Promoting the technology transfer of the
production of new launches

The research and development unit and plants
have jointly established a committee for quality
control of products that unifies standards for
the appearance and taste of finished products.
The committee sets up specification and data
in accordance with such standards to draw
up product guidelines and provides training
to operating staff of production lines. It also
inspects the finished products by sample testing
to ensure product quality.
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2.

Improving the capacity utilization of plants:

Developing contractor market for bakery
products

To improve the capacity utilization of product
lines, the Group proposes to promote the OEM
business of certain functions. The research and
development department will develop OEM
products in line with external demand during
the early stage, while frequently developing
special products with high gross profit to foster
expansion of the OEM business in the long run.

Developing new products for machinery and
equipment with low production capacity

Owing to the low operation ratio of certain
automated production lines as a result of
poor sales performance of products, in 2016,
research and development units will specifically
develop relevant new products for such
production lines and conduct promotion and
sales under the system of the chain stores of
the Group. It is anticipated to increase the
capacity utilization of machinery as well as raise
OEM opportunities by successful sales.
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Raising the technology level of research and
development:

Perfecting the organization structure of
research and development

Under the austerity policy of all-round
preliminary cost control, the current labor
power of the research and development unit
falls behind the research and development
target for the year, leading to a decreased
functionality. It is planned to perfect the
establishment during the year in accordance
with the set organization structure to satisfy
needs for research and development.

Refining the functionality of research and
development staff

During the improvement in the attractiveness
of in-store products and the capacity utilization
of plants, the research and development unit,
with sufficient manpower, will continue to
entail further standardization in functionality
distinction and professionalization on new
product development and technology transfer,
and train staff to maximize efficiency.
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Mr. Tien-An Lo, aged 62, was appointed as a Director
in March 2008 and then as an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company in December 2011. He is the
founder of the Group and has been responsible for the overall
strategic planning and management of the Group. Mr. Lo has
extensive experience in the bakery and retail industries, having
been engaged in the bakery and retail businesses for over 22
years. In addition, he has extensive experience in corporate
management including drafting overall guidelines, conducting
systemic management, and drawing up strategic plans. Mr. Lo is
currently a director of each of the Group's subsidiaries. Mr. Lo
has served as a director of Sino Century Universal Corporation,
the former controlling shareholder of the Company since 2008
(On 19 October 2015, immediately following the completion
of the restructuring, the shares of the Company held by Sino
Century Universal Corporation were distributed to its registered
shareholders on a pro-rata basis, Sino Century Universal
Corporation has ceased to be the controlling shareholder
but remains as a substantial shareholder of the Company (as
defined under the Listing Rules).). Mr. Lo has also served as
the chairman of the board of directors of Shanghai Christine
Foodstuff Co., Ltd. since 1999. He has served as the vice
president of the Association of Taiwanese Businessmen of
Shanghai since December 2009. Mr. Lo has been the key driver
of the Group's strategies and achievements to date. Mr. Lo
graduated from Tian Li County Zhong Xing High Commercial
Technical Private School in 1981. In 2007, Mr. Lo was named
as an Entrepreneur of the Year by financial publication Forbes
China. Since 28 February 2013, Mr. Lo has temporarily taken
up the duties of the chief executive officer of the Company
until a suitable candidate is found.
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Mr. Dun-Ching Hung, aged 70, was appointed as an executive
Director in December 2011 and is responsible for formulation
of overall policy and guidelines in respect of the Group's
administration and management. Mr. Hung has over 28 years
of experience in the bakery and trade industries. Mr. Hung is
currently a director of three members of the Group, namely
Shanghai Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd., Shanghai Ji Yuan De
Foodstuff Co., Ltd. and Nanjing Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd..
Since 2008, Mr. Hung has served as a director of Sino Century
Universal Corporation, the former controlling shareholder of
the Company (On 19 October 2015, immediately following the
completion of the restructuring, the shares of the Company
held by Sino Century Universal Corporation were distributed
to its registered shareholders on a pro-rata basis, Sino Century
Universal Corporation has ceased to be the controlling
shareholder but remains as a substantial shareholder of the
Company (as defined under the Listing Rules).). Since 1993,
Mr. Hung has served as the chairman of the board of directors
of Shanghai Guang Can Foodstuff Co., Ltd. Since 1987, Mr.
Hung has served as the chairman of the board of directors of
Taiwan Tong Can Trading Co., Ltd.. Mr. Hung is familiar with
the management and operation of processing and trading of
raw-food materials enterprises. His experience and knowledge
promotes the Group's development.

Mr. Yu Lin, aged 39, was appointed as the non-executive
Director in July 2015 and re-designated as the executive
Director with effect from 23 December 2015. Mr. Lin is
responsible for formulation of overall policy and guidelines in
respect of the Group’s business management. Mr. Lin is the
founder of Raiderly Holdings Limited and has been appointed as
its director since March 2013. He was an investment manager
of Taiping Asset Management Company Limited* (K& EE
BB FR/AF]), a subsidiary of China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited which listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 966), from
November 2008 to May 2010, an investment manager in asset
management department of Western Securities Co., Ltd.* (7
HEHFROEBERAREEEIESR), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in May 2012 (stock code: 002673.
SZ) from September 2005 to February 2008 and an investment
manager of Bairui Trust Investment Company Limited* (H¥w{z
FERE AR E TR A]) from April 2003 to August 2005.

Mr. Lin graduated from the faculty of business administration
of Nanjing University Business School (B R K E2R7T) in July
1999 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in management. He
obtained a master degree in finance from the faculty of finance
of the Finance School of Renmin University of China (fFE AR
REFHERER 2 FZ) in July 2002.
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Mr. Chi-Ming Chou, aged 64, was appointed as an executive
Director in December 2011 and was re-designated as a non-
executive Director with effect from 23 December 2015. Mr.
Chou joined the Group in 1993. Mr. Chou has more than 22
years of experience in the bakery industry in the PRC. Mr. Chou
is currently a director of two members of the Group, namely
Shanghai Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Ji Yuan
De Foodstuff Co., Ltd.. Mr. Chou has served as a director of
Sino Century Universal Corporation, the former controlling
shareholder of the Company since 2008 (On 19 October 2015,
immediately following the completion of the restructuring,
the shares of the Company held by Sino Century Universal
Corporation were distributed to its registered shareholders on
a pro-rata basis, such that Sino Century Universal Corporation
has ceased to be the controlling shareholder but remains as
a substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined under
the Listing Rules).). Mr. Chou has served as a director of Ban
Wu Food Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in Taiwan that
produces and sells bakery products only in Taiwan, since 1996,
and served as a director of Chao Bi Food Enterprise Co., Ltd.,
a company engaged in bakery business, from 2003 to 2006.
In addition, since 2011, Mr. Chou has served as a director
of Shanghai Jia Guo Packaging Co., Ltd., a company mainly
engaged in manufacture and sale of packaging materials in
Shanghai, and since 1997, he has served as a director of San
Jiu Xing Co., Ltd., a company mainly engaged in manufacture
and sale of packaging materials in Taiwan. Mr. Chou has
served as a management committee member of the Tainan
City Bakery Association since 2007.
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Mr. Haiming Gao, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in December 2014. He is currently a
senior assistant to the three offices of the chief engineer, chief
accountant and chief economist (= 4T (& Ti2AT - & 5HE0
T 48 4% RN ) A = =S A& B IR) in Shanghai Chemical Industry
Park Development Co., Ltd.* (/8L T ¥ @B REARAR]), a
real estate development company, where he has been working
since 2008. He was a manager of the financial department,
a vice chief accountant ( g #& = &t £ ) and a board secretary
of Shanghai Wai Gaogiao Free Trade Zone Development Co.
Ltd* (/BN @ B AR T R 2 Ik ) B BR 2 Al) (a real estate
development company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock codes: A shares: 600648; B shares: 900912)) between
1991 and 2002. He served as a director and general manager
in Sungolden Limited (B8 & & % A R 2 7)), a subsidiary of
Shanghai Wai Gaogiao Free Trade Zone Development Co. Ltd,
mainly responsible for trading and investment, between 2000
and 2002 and in Shanghai Chemical Industry Park Property Co.,
Ltd.* (BBt BT ¥R EXEBFR A, a company principally
engaged in leasing and sale of properties, between 2002 and
2008. Mr. Gao graduated from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics (& Bf 48 K 2) in December 1987 majoring
in accounting. He obtained a master degree of business
administration from University of South Australia in May
2002. Mr. Gao is a senior accountant recognized by Shanghai
Accounting Senior Professional and Technical Title Qualification
Evaluating Committee* (/8T &5 RIS M EHE KB LE
BERFEZ B @) in October 1994 and he has been a non-
practicing member of Shanghai Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (/@M s & stEN 7€) since 1997.

Mr. Nianlin Zhu, aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in December 2011. Mr. Zhu is currently
the president of China Association of Bakery & Confectionery
Industry, a deputy secretary of China National Light Industry
Council, a director of the Economic Cooperation Department
of China National Light Industry Council, a deputy secretary
of the State Food and Nutrition Consultant Committee, a
director of Educational Steering Committee under the Ministry
of Education’s National Committee of Vocational Education in
Food Industry. Mr. Zhu received his Bachelor Degree in food
engineering from Wuxi Light Industry Institute in 1982. Mr. Zhu
received his Master of Business Administration from Tsinghua
University in 2001.

* For identification purposes only
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Ms. Wanwen Su, aged 41, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in December 2011. Ms. Su is currently
a clinical assistant professor in School of Pharmacy, Taipei
Medical University, and Advisor of pharmaceutical care
committee, Taiwan Pharmacist Association. She is a registered
pharmacist in Massachusetts, USA and a certified pharmacist in
Taiwan as well. She is also a certified holistic health counselor
certified by the American Association of Drugless Practitioners
in USA. She served as a researcher of Clinical Research Center
of Excellence for Clinical Trial and Research, Taipei Medical
University Wan-Fang Hospital, from 2008 to 2009 and a
pharmacy manager in Stop and Shop Pharmacy, from 2000 to
2006. She has a deep understanding of nutrition and healthy
living. Ms. Su obtained her Bachelor of Science in pharmacy
from Northeastern University in 1998 and her Doctor of
Pharmacy degree from Massachusetts College of Pharmacy and
Health Sciences in 2004 and took professional and advanced
health counseling training programs in Institute for Integrative
Nutrition affiliated with Columbia University from 2005 to
2007.

Mr. Weilun Liao, aged 48, was appointed as the Company’s
vice president of finance and accounting. Mr. Liao joined the
Group in 2011. Mr. Liao served as a senior auditor of Audit
Department of KPMG Taiwan from 1996 to 1998; following
that, Mr. Liao served as a project manager of the Corporate
Finance Department, Corporate Banking Division of the Capital
Securities Corporation from 1998 to 2004. From 2008 to
2009, he served as a special assistant to the chairman of Long
Chen Paper Co., Ltd.. Mr. Liao obtained his Bachelor Degree
in accounting in Fu Jen University in 1995. In addition, Mr.
Liao obtained his qualifications as a Senior Securities Specialist
from Taiwan Securities Association and a Securities Investment
Trust and Consulting Professional from Securities Investment
Trust & Consulting Association of Taiwan, in 1999 and 2008,
respectively.
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Ms. Yuping Jiang, aged 45, was appointed as the Company’s
vice president of sales and management. She oversees the
Company’s overall operations in Nanjing, including overall sales
management, corporate rules formulation and enforcement,
appointment of the senior management. Ms. Jiang has gained
13 years of experience in factory management, retail outlet
management and expansion. She joined the Group in 2002. Ms.
Jiang oversees the expansion of the Company’s Nanjing retail
network, from one retail outlet to the current 80 retail outlets.
Before joining the Group, Ms. Jiang served as the manager
and deputy general manager of Jiangsu Xinxi Hotel from 1996
to 2002. Ms. Jiang has extensive experience in finance and
human resources management. In 2007, Ms. Jiang was elected
as a deputy to the People’s Congress of Baixia District, Nanjing.
Ms. Jiang received her Bachelor Degree in food industry and
science from Wuxi Institute of Light Industry in 1994,

Ms. Liping Huang, aged 48, was appointed as the Company’s
vice president of sales and management. She is mainly
responsible for sales and management matters in Zhejiang,
Wuxi and Suzhou. She joined the Group in 2006. Ms. Huang
has approximately 14 years of experience in marketing and
procurement. Before joining the Group, she worked in
Shanghai Kangcheng Storage Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2002 and
in Shihu Storage (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from 2004 to 2005. Ms.
Huang graduated from Fuzhou University in 1989.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased
to present the Company’s annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability on 11 March
2008. On 23 February 2012 (the “Listing Date”), the Shares
successfully commenced dealing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) by initially offering
250,000,000 Shares at the offer price of HK$1.60 per Share.
The Company subsequently issued 10,188,000 additional
Shares pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment option
granted by the Company in connection with the initial public
offering on the Listing Date.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31
December 2015 are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A fair review of the Group's business during the year is
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 7 and
Management Discussion and Analysis sections on pages 8 to
22 of this Annual Report. Description of possible risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be found
in the Chairman’s Statement section on pages 5 to 7. Also,
the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group can be found in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements. No important event after the period affecting the
Group has occurred since the end of the financial year. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial
Summary on page 164 of this Annual Report. In addition,
discussions on the Group’s environmental policies, relationships
with its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
are all contained in the Corporate Governance Report section
on pages 54 to 71. The probable future business development
of the Company is discussed in the paragraph headed “Future
Prospects” from pages 18 to 19 of this Annual Report.
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The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
its financial position as at 31 December 2015 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 80.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for 2015.

The net proceeds from the Company’s issue of new shares
at the time of its listing on the Stock Exchange on the Listing
Date and pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment
option on 16 March 2012 amounted to HK$356,800,000.
Such net proceeds are intended to be or have been applied
in accordance with the proposed applications as set out in
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 10 February 2012. The use
of proceeds can be summarized as follows:

R=-Z—AF

+=A=+—~H

At 31 December 2015

BT

HK$

HR T ZEM L Opening new retail outlets 146,288,000

EEREIER Expanding production capacity 142,662,000
LR MEE BRI AR R EER Addition and improvement of the information technology

systems and the R&D of new products 16,567,000

—MEEE® General operating working capital 35,680,000

#Et Total 341,197,000

RIE—AE+ A=+ BADANMEBRELEHN A
15,603,000/ 7T + TS IB FREE FERAR BT ITENNRES
K35 A ©

As at 31 December 2015, the balance of unutilized proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$15,603,000 and the net
proceeds are temporarily placed in short term deposits with
licensed institutions in Hong Kong.
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A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 164 of this report.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group retained a healthy financial position as at 31
December 2015 without any bank borrowings, pledged assets
and notes payable.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of
the Cayman lIslands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity contained herein.
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The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent
the share premium, reserves and profit which in aggregate
amounted to approximately RMB422,767,000 as at 31
December 2015. Under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Company’s memorandum and the Articles
and provided that immediately following the date on which
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business. In accordance with the Articles, dividends may be
declared and paid out of the profits of the Company, realised
or unrealised or from any reserve set aside from profits which
the Directors determine is no longer needed. With the sanction
of an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of the share premium account of the Company.

During the year, the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
5.40% of the Group’s total purchases. The Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for 24.06% of the Group’s total
purchases.

During the year, no single customer accounted for over 10%
of the Group's total sales.

Among our five largest suppliers, Shanghai Yi Pin Xuan
Foodstuff Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Meixin Trade Co., Ltd. are
our connected parties. Details of the continuing connected
transactions are set out in the section headed “Annual review
of Continuing Connected Transactions” below.
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Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of
their associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors of
the Company, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest suppliers.

During the year, the Group made no charitable and other
donations.

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tien-An Lo (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Dun-Ching Hung

Mr. Yu Lin (appointed as a non-executive Director on 24
July 2015 and re-designated as an executive Director on 23
December 2015)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Chi-Ming Chou (re-designated from an executive Director
to a non-executive Director on 23 December 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Haiming Gao
Mr. Nianlin Zhu
Ms. Wanwen Su

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). The
Company is of the view that all the independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 23 to 28 of this report.

Mr. Yu Lin has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of 3 years starting from 24 July
2015. A supplemental service contract has been entered into
between Mr. Yu Lin and the Company with respect to the re-
designation from a non-executive Director to an executive
Director with effect from 23 December 2015. Except for the
aforesaid re-designation, all material terms of the service
contract remain unchanged. Mr. Chi-Ming Chou has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a fixed term of 3
years starting from 23 February 2015. A supplemental service
contract has been entered into between Mr. Chi-Ming Chou
and the Company with respect to the re-designation from an
executive Director to a non-executive Director with effect from
23 December 2015. Except for the aforesaid re-designation,
all material terms of the service contract remain unchanged.
Mr. Haiming Gao has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a fixed term of 3 years starting from 29
December 2014. Apart from Mr. Yu Lin, Mr. Chi-Ming Chou
and Mr. Haiming Gao, each of the executive Directors and each
of the other independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a fixed term of 3
years starting from 23 February 2015.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year and as
at 31 December 2015.
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On 19 October 2015, immediately following the completion of
the restructuring, the shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
held by Sino Century Universal Corporation, the former
controlling shareholder of the Company were distributed to
its registered shareholders on a pro-rata basis, Sino Century
Universal Corporation has ceased to be the controlling
shareholder but remains as a substantial shareholder of the
Company (as defined under the Listing Rules). Prior to the
restructuring, the registered shareholders of Sino Century
Universal Corporation held their Shares through Sino Century
Universal Corporation. After the restructuring, the previous
registered shareholders of Sino Century Universal Corporation
now hold their Shares directly through the entities controlled
by them respectively. The effective shareholding interests of
the previous registered shareholders of Sino Century Universal
Corporation in the Company remain unchanged immediately
before and after the restructuring.

Immediately after completion of the aforesaid restructuring,
Sino Century Universal Corporation held 179,762,244 Shares
(representing approximately 17.79% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this annual report) and has
ceased to be the controlling shareholder but remains as a
substantial shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
the Company.

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no contract of
significance to which the Company or its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling
shareholder had a material interest subsisted during the period
from 1 January 2015 to 19 October 2015.

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance
has been entered into among the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any of their
subsidiaries during the during the period from 1 January 2015
to 19 October 2015.
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The controlling shareholders have entered into a deed of non-
competition dated 1 February 2012 in favor of the Company
(the "Non-Competition Undertaking”), pursuant to which
each of them has undertaken to the Company that he/she/it
will not, and will procure that his/her/its associates (except any
members of the Group) will not, during the restricted period,
directly or indirectly, either on his/her/its own account or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company,
engage in any business which is in competition or potentially
in competition, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.

The “Non-Compete Period” stated in the Non-Competition
Undertaking refers to the period commencing on the Listing
Date and ending on the earlier of:

(a) the date on which Sino Century Universal Corporation
ceases to be a controlling shareholder of the Company
within the meaning of the Listing Rules; and

(b) the date on which the Shares cease to be listed on the
Stock Exchange.

On 19 October 2015, immediately following the completion of
the restructuring, the shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
held by Sino Century Universal Corporation were distributed
to its registered shareholders on a pro-rata basis pursuant
to the agreement dated 19 October 2015, such that Sino
Century Universal Corporation has ceased to be the controlling
shareholder but remains as a substantial shareholder of the
Company (as defined under the Listing Rules). As such, the
Non-Competition Undertaking had expired on 19 October
2015.

Each of the convenantors had confirmed its/his/her compliance
with the Non-Competition Undertaking during the period from
1 January 2015 to 19 October 2015.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the convenantors’ compliance with the Non-Competition
Undertaking. The independent non-executive Directors
confirmed, to the best of their knowledge, that the
convenantors did not breach the terms of the Non-Competition
Undertaking.
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Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance to
the business of the Group which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the
year and as at 31 December 2015.

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had
any interest in any business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group.

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which such Director shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of his duty in his office.

None of the Directors shall be answerable for the acts, receipts,
neglects or defaults of the other or for joining in any receipts
for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons
with whom any moneys or effects belonging to the Company
shall or may be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for
insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of or belonging to the Company shall be placed out
on or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or damage
which may happen in the execution of his office, or in relation
thereto; provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director.

Each Member agrees to waive any claim or right of action
he might have, whether individually or by or in the right of
the Company, against any Director on account of any action
taken by such Director, or the failure of such Director to take
any action in the performance of his duties with or for the
Company; provided that such waiver shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director.
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Cayman Islands law does not limit the extent to which the
Articles may provide for indemnification of officers and
directors, except to the extent any such provision may be held
by the court to be contrary to public policy (e.g. for purporting
to provide indemnification against the consequences of
committing a crime).

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

The changes in the Board since the date of the Company’s
2015 interim report are set out below:

Mr. Yu Lin was appointed as a non-executive Director with
effect from 24 July 2015.

Mr. Chi-Ming Chou was re-designated from an executive
Director to a non-executive Director with effect from 23
December 2015.

Mr. Yu Lin was re-designated from a non-executive Director to
an executive Director with effect from 23 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no
change to information which is required to be disclosed and
has been disclosed by the Directors pursuant to rules 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorisation of the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting each year. The
remuneration of the executive Directors is subject to review
by the Remuneration Committee, and their remuneration is
determined with reference to the Directors’ qualifications,
experience, duties, responsibilities and performance and
results of the Group. As for the independent non-executive
Directors, remuneration is determined by the Board, upon
recommendation from the Remuneration Committee. Details
of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emolument
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Group had a total of 5,793 employees as at 31 December
2015, with the majority being sales staff in stores. Total
annual payroll amounted to approximately RMB355,740,000,
accounting for 33.51% of the operating revenue and
representing an increase of 3.32% as compared with 2014. In
addition to fixed wages, our employees may be granted other
allowances and a year-end bonus subject to a performance
appraisal. Currently, the Group carries out the store-closure
plans and staff downsizing, leading to job rotation, multi-skills
training and legal severance for related staff. At this stage,
training and control of labour costs are the key focus of our
human resources work.
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As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

B 1ERRF
BETBRABHESR B EmtE ZEREE A ERITREBDL

Percentage
Name of Directors/ Capacity/nature Number of of the Company'’s

chief executive of interest ordinary Shares  Position issued share capital
BHERELED SEHLEE S 184,212,244 & 18.24%
Mr. Tien-An Lo® Interest in a controlled corporation Long

HBE K ER SEHLEE S 66,921,303 A& 6.62%
Mr. Dun-Ching Hung®@ Interest in a controlled corporation Long

SRALES REEEEE 25,320,365 A 2.51%
Mr. Chi-Ming Chou® Interest in a controlled corporation Long

WIE L@ REHLEE S 121,500,000 & 12.03%
Mr. Yu Lin® Interest in a controlled corporation Long

LI Notes:

(1) 179,762,244 RE F (AR TR B FBNITE ) AR K £ FBSno (1 179,762,244 Shares are held by Mr. Tien-An Lo, who is concurrently a

Century Universal Corporation (['Sino Century 1)#57  Sino Century F Goyen
Investments Ltd(ESino Century® BZEM L A E2EHA ) A 100%HE
5 © M4,450,0000% B 15 F1 28 M &2 45 42 8 B Goyen Investments Ltd# &

5o
2) Sparkling Light Corporation E# #5282 5416.62 % B BT TR A »
(3) Masco International CorporationE 5 A AN A R142.51 % B B TR ©
(4) ZE AR B E EANE 25 A48 BAdd Fortune Ventures Limited#74 © Add

Fortune Ventures Limited A#R/E 56 4 5 50.5% 1 2 ©

Director and CEO, through Sino Century Universal Corporation (“Sino
Century”). Sino Century is owned as to 100% by Goyen Investments
Ltd, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Tien-An Lo who is a director of Sino
Century. And 4,450,000 Shares are held by Mr. Tien-An Lo through
Goyen Investments Ltd.

2) Sparkling Light Corporation directly owns approximately 6.62% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

3) Masco International Corporation directly owns approximately 2.51% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

(4) These Shares are held by Mr. Yu Lin, who is a Director, through Add
Fortune Ventures Limited. Add Fortune Ventures Limited is owned as to
50.5% by Mr. Yu Lin.
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Capacity/nature

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had, as at 31 December 2015, any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2015, Shareholders (other
than Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions of Substantial Shareholders in the
Shares

1ERRF
ERITREBD
Percentage

of the Company’s

EBERBE A

Number of

Name of shareholders of interest ordinary Shares  Position issued share capital

Sino Century® EmEB A 179,762,244 i1 & 17.79%%
Beneficial owner Long

Goyen Investments Ltd.()® RIEHEEE R 179,762,244 i1 & 17.79%
Interest in a controlled corporation Long

BEBEBA 4,450,0000 #fA 0.44%@
Beneficial owner Long

Sparkling Light Corporation® EmEB A 66,921,303 4#f& 6.62%%
Beneficial owner Long

Christine Princess Co. (PTC) Ltd. E5EA 75,000,000 tFE 7.42%
(“Christine Princess”™)@ Trustee Long

Add Fortune Ventures Limited® EmEB A 121,500,000 #& 12.03%
Beneficial owner Long

TTEA® REHLEE S 121,500,000 & 12.03%

Fang Minren®

Interest in a controlled corporation Long
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Investments LtdiR B e A2 EHEA ©

2) Goyen Investments LtdFRZEAZ R A2 EHES -
(3) Sparkling Light Corporation B 2E £ 2 E A °
(4) Christine Princess B — RN EBEZHSEMA L ZEEAF - HUAE
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(5) Add Fortune Ventures Limitedf1 75 B A 5 A5 49.5% 125 ©
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Notes:

(1) Sino Century is owned as to 100% by Goyen Investments Ltd. Goyen
Investments Ltd is wholly-owned by Mr. Tien-An Lo.

(2) Goyen Investments Ltd is wholly-owned by Mr. Tien-An Lo.

(3) Sparkling Light Corporation is wholly-owned by Mr. Dun-Ching Hung.

(4) Christine Princess is a trust company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, which holds its equity interest in the Company on trust for the
benefit of management employees.

(5) Add Fortune Ventures Limited is owned as to 49.5% by Mr. Fang

Minren.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

On 27 December 2011, Christine Princess, being a Shareholder,
adopted the Share Award Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme, (collectively named as “the Schemes”). The Schemes
involve the transfer of existing Shares held by Christine Princess
in the Company to eligible participants under the Schemes. No
new Shares will be issued by the Company for the purposes
of the Schemes, nor will there be any grant of options over
new securities of the Company and accordingly, the Schemes
do not fall within the ambit of, and are not subject to, the
regulations under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The Directors
consider the grant of the Share Award and the Share Options
has impact on the financial statements since the date of grant
and the subsequent financial periods. Such impact is disclosed
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements of this
report.
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Xiuping Zhu®
RINE@

Qiuyi Yu®

Yuping Jiang
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Category of participants

rEERRERE

Senior management of the Group
BEAL(EHE)

Connected person (Ching-Ying Lo)
HipfE B RaBEg2mE

Other employees and eligible persons

ESWBERONEEEER
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Number of Shares

the Share Options

As at 31 December 2015, the following shares have been
awarded under the Share Award Scheme:

RERREFIFRE
EREROEE BHRED
Number of Approximate percentage of

Shares awarded shareholding held upon the award

4,125,000 0.41

1,125,000 0.11

1,125,000 0.1
Notes:

(1) Ms. Xiuping Zhu retired on 28 February 2013 and ceased to be the chief
executive officer of the Company on the same date.

(2) Ms. Qiuyi Yu resigned on 16 April 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, the following share options have
been granted but not yet exercised under the Share Option
Scheme:

BRERTHTER
FRERERNES L
Approximate percentage of
shareholding held upon exercise
of all the Share Options

subject to

1,487,700 0.135
79,400 0.007
9,423,888 0.858

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2015 were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors,
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Details of related party transactions of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 37 of the
consolidated financial statements contained herein.

Save as the transaction with Aroma Coffee (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.,
the transactions disclosed in note 37(a) of the consolidated
financial statements as related party transactions constituted
non-exempt continuing connected as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and the Directors confirm that the
Company had complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance the disclosure requirements thereunder.

The transactions disclosed in note 37(b) of the consolidated
financial statements as related party transactions did not fall
under the scope of “Connect Transactions” or “Continuing
Connected Transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, and therefore are not required to comply with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with
parties which, upon the listing of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange, became connected persons of the Company under
the Listing Rules. These transactions are considered to be
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules,
which need to be disclosed herein in compliance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules. Details of the continuing
connected transactions are as follows:

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

(1 Shanghai Ji Yuan De, Shanghai Christine, Shanghai
Shuanghong Bakery and Shanghai Sweet Art entered
into a master supply agreement dated 1 January 2011
("Previous Wujiang Master Supply Agreement”) with
Woujiang Shangpu Packing Products Co., Ltd. (“Wujiang
Shangpu”), which is owned as to approximately
31.36% collectively by the associates of Mr. Chi-
Ming Chou, an executive Director, namely (a) 3.95%
by Mr. Zheng Yulin, being the nephew of Mr. Chi-
Ming Chou; (b) 3.00% by Mr. Liu Nongjie, being
the nephew of Mr. Chi-Ming Chou; and (c) 40.68%
by Hao Sheng Group Holdings Limited, a company
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owned by three children of Mr. Chi-Ming Chou as
to 60%, pursuant to which the Group agreed to
purchase from Wujiang Shangpu paper packaging
materials which are mainly used for wrapping and
packaging of mooncakes, bread, cakes and other
bakery products. The Previous Wujiang Master Supply
Agreement expired on 31 December 2013. However,
the Group has not renewed the Previous Wujiang
Master Supply Agreement before its expiry date and
relied on the same normal commercial terms as in the
Previous Wujiang Master Supply Agreement governing
the continuing connected transactions with Wujiang
Shangpu since 1 January 2014. On 26 August 2014,
Shanghai Christine, Shanghai Shuanghong Bakery,
Shanghai Ji Yuan De, Shanghai Sweet Art, Nanjing
Christine, Hangzhou Christine, Ningbo Christine,
Hangzhou Danbi entered into a renewed master supply
agreement with Wujiang Shangpu (“Renewed Wujiang
Master Supply Agreement’), pursuant to which the
Group agreed to purchase from Wujiang Shangpu
paper packaging materials which are mainly used for
wrapping and packaging of mooncakes, bread, cakes
and other bakery products. The relevant pricing is
determined on an arm'’s length basis and comparable
to prevailing market rates of the products supplied
within the PRC. In determining the prevailing market
rates, the Group will make reference to the prices from
two or more independent suppliers before placing
a purchase order. The prices and terms agreed are
not higher and not less favourable to the Group than
those available from independent third parties in the
ordinary and usual course of business. The Renewed
Wujiang Master Supply Agreement and the continuing
connected transactions contemplated thereunder and
the respective annual caps for the three years ending
31 December 2016 were approved at the extraordinary
general meeting held by the Company on 15 December
2014.

The Renewed Wujiang Master Supply Agreement is
for a term of 3 years and will expire on 31 December
2016. The agreement will be terminated at any time by
either party upon three months’ prior written notice to
the other party.

During the year, the Group’s total transaction
amount with Wujiang Shangpu contemplated under
the Renewed Wujiang Master Supply Agreement is
RMB12,826,000. The annual cap for the year ended 31
December 2015 is RMB20,700,000.
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Shanghai Ji Yuan De, Shanghai Christine, Shanghai
Shuanghong Bakery, Shanghai Sweet Art entered
into a master supply agreement dated | January 2011
("Previous Meixin Master Supply Agreement”) with
Shanghai Meixin Trade Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Meixin"),
which is wholly-owned by the family of Mr. Dun-
Ching Hung, an executive Director, pursuant to which
the Group agreed to purchase from Shanghai Meixin
certain ingredients for the production of bread, cakes
and other bakery products. The Previous Meixin Master
Supply Agreement expired on 31 December 2013.
However, the Group has not renewed the Previous
Meixin Master Supply Agreement before its expiry
date and relied on the same normal commercial terms
as in the Previous Meixin Master Supply Agreement
governing the continuing connected transactions
with Shanghai Meixin since 1 January 2014. On
26 August 2014, Shanghai Christine, Shanghai
Shuanghong Bakery, Shanghai Ji Yuan De, Shanghai
Sweet Art, Nanjing Christine, Hangzhou Christine,
Ningbo Christine, Hangzhou Danbi entered into a
renewed master supply agreement with Shanghai
Meixin (“Renewed Meixin Master Supply Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase
from Shanghai Meixin certain ingredients (such as
butter, milk powder, dried fruits, preserved fruits,
enzymes, additives and honey) for the production
of bread, cakes, pastries and other bakery products.
The relevant pricing is determined on an arm’s length
basis and comparable to prevailing market rates of the
products supplied within the PRC. In determining the
prevailing market rates, the Group will make reference
to the prices from two or more independent suppliers
before placing a purchase order. The prices and terms
agreed are not higher and not less favourable to the
Group than those available from independent third
parties in the ordinary and usual course of business.
The Renewed Meixin Master Supply Agreement and
the continuing connected transactions contemplated
thereunder and the respective annual caps for the three
years ending 31 December 2016 were approved at the
extraordinary general meeting held by the Company on
15 December 2014.

The Renewed Meixin Master Supply Agreement is for a
term of 3 years and will expire on 31 December 2016.
The agreement will be terminated at any time by either
party upon three months’ prior written notice to the
other party.
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During the year, the Group's total transaction
amount with Shanghai Meixin contemplated under
the Renewed Meixin Master Supply Agreement is
RMB14,850,000. The annual cap for the year ended 31
December 2015 is RMB31,800,000.

Shanghai Christine, Shanghai Shuanghong Bakery,
Shanghai Ji Yuan De and Shanghai Sweet Art entered
into a master supply agreement dated 1 January 2011
(“Previous Tongcan Master Supply Agreement”) with
Tongcan Trade Limited Company (“Tongcan”), which
is owned as to 44% by Mr. Dun-Ching Hung, an
executive Director and 56% collectively by the spouse,
two children and sister-in-law of Mr. Dun-Ching Hung,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase
from Tongcan certain fillings used in the production
of bread, cakes and mooncakes, such as sugary fillings
and Chinese chestnuts. The Previous Tongcan Master
Supply Agreement expired on 31 December 2013.
However, the Group has not renewed the Previous
Tongcan Master Supply Agreement before its expiry
date and relied on the same normal commercial terms
as in the Previous Tongcan Master Supply Agreement
governing the continuing connected transactions with
Shanghai Tongcan Foodstuff Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Tongcan”), which is wholly-owned by Tong Li Food
Co., Ltd which, in turn, is held as to 15% by Fine Up
Enterprise Co., Ltd., a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Dun-Ching Hung, an executive Director and 27.925%
collectively by the spouse and two children of Mr.
Hung, since 1 January 2014. On 26 August 2014,
Shanghai Christine, Shanghai Shuanghong Bakery,
Shanghai Ji Yuan De, Shanghai Sweet Art, Nanjing
Christine, Hangzhou Christine, Ningbo Christine,
Hangzhou Danbi entered into a renewed master
supply agreement with Shanghai Tongcan (“Renewed
Shanghai Tongcan Master Supply Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase from
Shanghai Tongcan certain fillings for production of
bread, cakes, mooncakes and other bakery products,
such as sugary fillings and Chinese chestnuts (“Tongcan
Supply”). Since the Tongcan Supply are tailor-made
products which are solely provided to the Group
and Shanghai Tongcan is the sole supplier of the
Tongcan Supply, there are strictly no comparable
purchase transactions with other independent third
party suppliers. The Group will make reference to the
prices of other fillings, which is similar to but not the
same as the Tongcan Supply, produced by Shanghai
Tongcan to independent third parties. The Tongcan
Supply is provided to the Group at a price not higher
than that of the other fillings provided by Shanghai
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Tongcan to independent third parties. The relevant
pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis, and
with respect to Tongcan Supply, Shanghai Tongcan
undertakes that the terms shall be no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to independent third
parties. The Renewed Shanghai Tongcan Master Supply
Agreement and the continuing connected transactions
contemplated thereunder and the respective annual
caps for the three years ending 31 December 2016
were approved at the extraordinary general meeting
held by the Company on 15 December 2014.

The Renewed Shanghai Tongcan Master Supply
Agreement is for a term of 3 years and will expire on
31 December 2016. The agreement will be terminated
at any time by either party upon three months’ prior
written notice to the other party.

During the Year, the Group's total transaction amount
with Shanghai Tongcan contemplated under the
Renewed Shanghai Tongcan Master Supply Agreement
is RMB5,592,000. The annual caps for the year ended
31 December 2015 is RMB10,000,000.

Shanghai Christine entered into a master supply
agreement dated 1 January 2011 (“Previous Yi Pin
Xuan Master Supply Agreement”) with Shanghai Yi
Pin Xuan Foodstuff Co., Ltd. (“Yi Pin Xuan"), which is
wholly-owned by Gourmet Holding Co., Ltd., which,
in turn, is wholly-owned by Ms. Ching-Ying Huang
Lo, being the sister of Mr. Tien-An Lo, an executive
Director and the chairman of the Company, pursuant
to which the Group agreed to provide to Yi Pin Xuan
ingredients for production of cakes and other bakery
products including flour, sugar and oil. The Previous
Yi Pin Xuan Master Supply Agreement expired on 31
December 2013. However, the Group has not entered
into a new agreement with Yi Pin Xuan before the
expiry date of the Previous Yi Pin Xuan Master Supply
Agreement and relied on the same normal commercial
terms as in the Previous Yi Pin Xuan Master Supply
Agreement governing the new continuing connected
transactions with Yi Pin Xuan in respect of master
supply since 1 January 2014. On 26 August 2014,
Shanghai Christine, Shanghai Shuanghong Bakery,
Shanghai Ji Yuan De, Nanjing Christine, Hangzhou
Christine, Ningbo Christine, Hangzhou Danbi entered
into a new master supply agreement with Yi Pin Xuan
(“New Yi Pin Xuan Master Supply Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide to Vi
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Pin Xuan certain ingredients and other miscellaneous
items including flour, sugar and oil. The pricing for the
ingredients provided is determined on an arm'’s length
basis and based on the actual costs of the ingredients
sourced by the Group at prevailing market rates. This is
conditional upon Yi Pin Xuan providing the Christine-
branded products at a price which is not more than
60% of the retail prices under the New Yi Pin Xuan
Master Processing Agreement (as defined below). The
prices and terms agreed under the New Yi Pin Xuan
Master Supply Agreement and the New Yi Pin Xuan
Master Processing Agreement as a whole are not
less favourable to the Group than those available to
independent third parties in the ordinary and usual
course of business. The New Yi Pin Xuan Master Supply
Agreement and the continuing connected transactions
contemplated thereunder and the respective annual
caps for the three years ending 31 December 2016
were approved at the extraordinary general meeting
held by the Company on 15 December 2014.

The New Yi Pin Xuan Master Supply Agreement is for a
term of 3 years and will expire on 31 December 2016.
The agreement will be terminated at any time by either
party upon three months’ prior written notice to the
other party.

During the year, the Group’s total transaction amount
with Yi Pin Xuan contemplated under the New Yi Pin
Xuan Master Supply Agreement is RMB5,056,000. The
annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2015 is
RMB5,300,000.

Shanghai Christine entered into a master processing
agreement dated 1 January 2011 (“Previous Yi Pin
Xuan Master Processing Agreement”) with Yi Pin Xuan,
pursuant to which Yi Pin Xuan agreed to process and
produce Christine-branded products to the Group. The
Previous Yi Pin Xuan Master Processing Agreement
expired on 31 December 2013. However, the Group
has not entered into a new agreement with Yi Pin
Xuan before the expiry date of the Previous Yi Pin
Xuan Master Processing Agreement and relied on the
same normal commercial terms as in the Previous Yi Pin
Xuan Master Processing Agreement governing the new
continuing connected transactions with Yi Pin Xuan
in respect of master processing since 1 January 2014.
On 26 August 2014, Shanghai Christine, Shanghai
Shuanghong Bakery, Shanghai Ji Yuan De, Nanjing
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Christine, Hangzhou Christine, Ningbo Christine,
Hangzhou Danbi entered into a new master processing
agreement with Yi Pin Xuan (“New Yi Pin Xuan Master
Processing Agreement”), pursuant to which Yi Pin
Xuan agreed to process and produce Christine-branded
products to the Group. The pricing for the processed
products supplied is determined on an arm’s length
basis and set at a price which does not exceed 60% of
the retail prices of the Christine-branded products. This
is conditional upon the ingredients being supplied by
the Group to Yi Pin Xuan at actual costs (which are also
the prevailing market rates) pursuant to the New Yi Pin
Xuan Master Supply Agreement. The prices and terms
agreed under the New Yi Pin Xuan Master Supply
Agreement and the New Yi Pin Xuan Master Processing
Agreement as a whole are not less favourable to the
Group than those available to independent third parties
in the ordinary and usual course of business. The
New Yi Pin Xuan Master Processing Agreement and
the continuing connected transactions contemplated
thereunder and the respective annual caps for the three
years ending 31 December 2016 were approved at the
extraordinary general meeting held by the Company on
15 December 2014.

The New Yi Pin Xuan Master Processing Agreement is
for a term of 3 years and will expire on 31 December
2016. The agreement will be terminated at any time by
either party upon three months’ prior written notice to
the other party.

During the year, the Group’s total transaction
amount with Yi Pin Xuan contemplated under the
New Yi Pin Xuan Master Processing Agreement is
RMB112,500,000. The annual cap for the year ended
31 December 2015 is RMB163,700,000.
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The independent non-executive Directors and audit committee
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
numbered 1 to 5 for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
are:

1. entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

2. entered into on normal commercial terms or terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available from/
to independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the terms of respective agreements
governing the transactions that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with the requirement of Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules, the Board has engaged the auditors
to perform certain procedures on the above continuing
connected transactions. The auditors have reviewed the above
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong standards on
Assurance Engagement 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions Under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions:

1) have received the approval of the Board;

2) are, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company if the transactions
involve provision of goods or services by the Company;

3) have been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing the

transactions; and

4) have not exceeded the cap.
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The Directors consider that the Company has applied the
principles of Appendix 14 — Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) to the Listing
Rules and complied with the applicable code provisions during
the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 as set
out in the CG Code, except for the deviations to the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code

On 28 February 2013, Ms. Xiuping Zhu retired as the Chief
Executive Officer (the “CEQ") of the Company. Mr. Tien-
An Lo ("Mr. Lo") is temporarily taking up the duties of CEO
until a suitable candidate is found. Mr. Lo is the founder of
the Group and has over 22 years of experience in bakery and
retail industry. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
both Chairman and CEO in Mr. Lo will continue to provide the
Company with strong and consistent leadership and will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company.

Audit Committee and Review of Financial
Statements

The Audit Committee has adopted written terms of reference
in compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management system, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed the auditing, internal controls and financial reporting
matters, including review of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 have been audited by the Company’s
external auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the required
standard for securities transactions by Directors. Specific
enquiry has been made to all the Directors and all Directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

During the year, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu were appointed
as the external auditors of the Company. A resolution will be
submitted at the 2016 annual general meeting to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the external auditors of the
Company. The Company has not changed its auditors in the
past three years.

On behalf of the Board
Tien-An Lo
Chairman

Shanghai, PRC, 29 March 2016
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With an aim of creating an environment for the solid
sustainable growth of the Company and to enhance
shareholders’ confidence and protect shareholders’ interests,
the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company is committed to establishing an internally high
efficiency of corporate governance practices and procedures in
accordance with the Listing Rules and relevant applicable laws
and regulations.

The Company and the Board have adopted the code provisions
of the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Board believes that the Company has fully complied with
the CG Code except for the below disclosed.

The Company has adopted the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, the Company confirmed that
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015.

The Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tien-An Lo (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Dun-Ching Hung

Mr. Yu Lin (appointed as a non-executive Director on 24 July
2015 and re-designated as an executive Director on 23
December 2015)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Chi-Ming Chou (re-designated from an executive Director
to a non-executive Director on 23 December 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Nianlin Zhu

Mr. Haiming Gao
Ms. Wanwen Su
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The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 23 to 28 of this annual
report. The composition of the Board is well balanced which
ensures that the unique expertise and experience of each
Director are pooled together to meet the business needs
of the Group and for the purposes of making independent
well-balanced judgments. Each Director has the relevant
professional and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience, and thus will contribute well to the business
success of the Group.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing over one third of the members of the
Board in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules.
One of the independent non-executive Directors has the
professional qualification of accounting. The independent non-
executive Directors serve the important function of ensuring
and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate governance
framework. Their participations provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of the Group and its
shareholders, including the review of the continuing connected
transactions described above in this annual report. The Board
confirms that the Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

Term of Non-executive Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into service agreements
with the Company for a specific term of three years and are
required to offer themselves for re-election at the first annual
general meeting following their appointment. Pursuant to
the Articles of Association of the Company, one-third of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years. Retiring
Directors are eligible for re-election at the annual general
meeting at which he or she retires. Mr. Chi-Ming Chou, a
non-executive Director, has renewed his service agreement
with the Company and a supplemental service agreement has
also been entered into between him and the Company with
respect to the re-designation as a non-executive Director for
a term of three years commencing from 23 February 2015.
The term of Mr. Haiming Gao, an independent non-executive
Director, commenced from the date of appointment for a term
of three years. Both of Mr. Nianlin Zhu, an independent non-
executive Director, and Ms. Wanwen Su, an independent non-
executive Director, have renewed their service agreements with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 23
February 2015.
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Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and
affairs of the Company. The primary duty of the Board is to
ensure the ongoing operation of the Company and to ensure
that it is managed in the best interests of the shareholders
as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Board delegates the authority and
responsibility of daily operations, business strategies and day-
to-day management to the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ")
and the senior management.

Delegation by the Board

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Strategy
and Investment Committee, Corporate Governance Committee
and the senior management.

Management Function

The division of responsibility between the Board and
management is determined by the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company. The authority of making daily
decisions has been delegated by the Board to the management.

Chairman and CEO

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be served by different
individuals to achieve a balance of authority and power.

On 28 February 2013, Ms. Zhu retired as the CEO. Mr. Tien-An
Lo has temporarily taken up the duties of CEO until a suitable
candidate is found. Mr. Lo is the founder of the Group and
has over 22 years of experience in bakery and retail industry.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman
and CEO in Mr. Lo will continue providing the Company
with strong and consistent leadership and will not impair the
balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term and is subject
to retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years. The retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election under the Articles of Association of the Company
(the "Articles”). Under the Articles, any Director appointed by
the Board, either to fill a casual vacancy in the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board, shall hold office only until the
next annual general meeting of the Company and shall be
eligible for re-election.

Shareholders may, at any general meeting convened and held
in accordance with the Company’s Articles, remove a Director
at any time before the expiration of his/her period of office
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Company’s
Articles or in any agreement between the Company and such
Director.

Continuous development of Directors and senior
management of the Company

During the year, the Company arranged the auditors to
organise for all Directors namely, Mr.Tien-An Lo, Mr. Dun-
Ching Hung, Mr. Yu Lin (appointed on 24 July 2015), Mr. Chi-
Ming Chou, Mr. Nianlin Zhu, Ms. Wanwen Su and Mr. Haiming
Gao and senior management members, one training session
on the topic of notifiable transactions, and all directors have
attended such training session. The Company also arranged the
company secretary to provide reading materials for all directors
on corporate governance and changes to laws and regulations
for their reference and study. Directors are requested to
provide their training records to the Legal Department.

—Z—REFHR Annual Report 2015 T4 STEIBIZR AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited

57



58

ESNeREBAENEIRRRBERRE

RRRERHEEEERBUREERSRERABRRRE
PEINEEARSFLRERE BE-_F—AF+_H
=T-RALEFE EERSREEASLEERE -

EFerHHE  gREFOR FAREHZARER4R
BASESR  UEXREFEARGLT - SRR ELAS
BERHT  EFERERSREPIERIAGHHRE -

BEERFEMBTNESERRREAG RN H R LN
T

ERRRAE Mr. Tien-An Lo
HEBRE Mr. Dun-Ching Hung

WERER_F—0F
tHZHAEER)

Mr. Yu Lin (appointed on 24 July 2015)

FRARAE Mr. Chi-Ming Chou
REHELE Mr. Nianlin Zhu
eSS N Ms. Wanwen Su
=ERE Mr. Haiming Gao

fiEE: MEEENBRBEAGSRITRIEZERES - Fib - BIEBFE

¢
@E?ﬁ °

BRARTREFEERI  TRTNFRAELENTESTLE
B B FMITESRITEE ©

Directors’ and Senior Officers’ Liability Insurance
and Indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the Directors and senior officers for their liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. For the year ended 31
December 2015, no claim has been made against the Directors
and senior officers.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly and four times in one
year. A notice of meeting shall be given to all Directors at least
14 days prior to the date of the meeting to enable all Directors
to attend the meetings. The agenda of the meeting shall be
determined after consulting each Director so that each Director
is given the opportunity to include his/her proposals into the
agenda.

Attendance of each Director at all the board meetings and
general meetings during the year is as follows:

HE /BTN BT
ESgeENY BRREEFNH
Number of HE= Number of HEE
board meetings Attendance  general meeting Attendance
attended/held ratio attended/held ratio
4/4 100% mn 100%
4/4 100% mn 100%
22 100% TEm (D) TER
N/A (note) N/A
4/4 100% n 100%
3/4 75% 0/1 0%
3/4 75% mn 100%
3/4 75% 0/1 0%
Note: Mr. Yu Lin was appointed as the Director after the annual general

meeting was held. Therefore, he was not present at the meeting.

Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held a
meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors without
the presence of Executive Directors during the year.
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=/EREE Mr. Haiming Gao
KU E Mr. Nianlin Zhu
BNt Ms. Wanwen Su

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the " Audit
Committee”) on 27 December 2011 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules and paragraph C3 of the CG Code. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in providing
an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management
system, to oversee the audit process and to perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board. The
Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr.
Haiming Gao, Ms. Wanwen Su and Mr. Nianlin Zhu. All of the
committee members, including Mr. Haiming Gao, the chairman
of the Audit Committee, who has a professional qualification
in financial management and accountancy, are independent
non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters, including the review of the interim consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2015
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and considered that the
Company had complied with all relevant accounting standards
and requirements and made adequate disclosures.

During the year, the Audit Committee has held two meetings.
The attendance of each member at the Audit Committee
meetings is set out in the following table:

HE BT
WEZEZER
BEXE HE =
Number
of Audit
Committee
meetings Attendance
attended/held ratio
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 27 December 2011 with
written terms of reference in compliance with rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules and paragraph B1 of the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include but
without limitation: (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policies
on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms of the
specific remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals resolved by the
Directors from time to time; and (iv) evaluating and making
recommendations on employee benefit arrangements. The
Remuneration Committee comprises one executive director and
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Nianlin
Zhu (Chairman), Ms. Wanwen Su and Mr. Tien-An Lo.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held two
meetings and performed the following main tasks:

- making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors

- review of the emoluments of the executive Directors

- review of the remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management

The attendance of each member at the Remuneration
Committee meetings is set out in the following table:

HE BT
WEMEES
BERE HE R
Number of
Remuneration
Committee
meetings Attendance
attended/held ratio
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
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Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management,
including a director and chief executive officer of the Company
by band for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out
below:

A

Number of

FrEEEE Remuneration bands individuals
75%1,000,0007C RIA T HK$1,000,000 and under 4
781,000,001 2% 1,500,0007T HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 -
711,500,001 702 %% 2,000,000 HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1

712,000,001 T2 7%% 2,500,000
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FIFE9 ©
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HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 -

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
the five highest paid employees are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 27 December 2011 with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A5 of the CG
Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the Board composition and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and removal of Directors
of the Company. The Nomination Committee comprises
one executive director and two independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Nianlin Zhu (Chairman), Mr. Haiming
Gao and Mr. Tien-An Lo.

In designing the Board’s composition, the Nomination
Committee would consider a number of factors as set out in
the Company’s Board diversity Policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree
on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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Measurable Objectives of Diversity Policy

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, culture and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board
currently comprises seven Directors, including 1 female and 6
male Directors. There are 2 Directors at the age range of 31-
40, 1 Director at the range of 51-60 and 4 Directors aged 61
or above, of which 4 Directors are from Taiwan and 3 from
China. In respect of educational background, 3 Directors have
obtained master degree and 1 Director has obtained doctorate
degree. The members of the Board have rich experiences
in enterprise operation and management, processing and
trading of raw-food materials, bakery, nutrition and healthy
living, management and finance, finance and accounting,
and enhance their business skills through continuous learning
and training. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
members, structure and composition of the Board, and is of
the opinion that the rational structure of the Board and the
experiences and skills of the Directors in various aspects and
fields may enable the Company to maintain high standard
operation. Details on the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

Before appointments are made by the Board, the Nomination
Committee will evaluate the skills, knowledge and experience
on the Board, and, in the light of this evaluation prepare a
description of the role and capabilities required for a particular
appointment. In identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination
Committee will (where applicable and appropriate):

1. Use public advertisement or the services of external
consultants to facilitate the search;

2. Consider candidates from a wide range of
backgrounds; and

3. Consider candidates on merit and against objective
criteria, taking into account the amount of time
required to be devoted to the position.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee has held two
meetings and performed the following work:

- review of the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience) of
the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive directors

- consideration of the qualifications of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the annual general
meeting

- Nomination of Mr. Yu Lin for appointment as a non-
executive Director and making recommendations to the
Board

- making recommendations to the Board on the
re-designation of Mr. Yu Lin from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director

- making recommendations to the Board on the
re-designation of Mr. Chi-Ming Chou from an executive
Director to a non-executive Director

The attendance of each member at the Nomination Committee
meetings is set out in the following table:

HE BT
MREZEEE
RN HER
Number of
Nomination
Committee
meetings Attendance
attended/held ratio
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee
(the "Corporate Governance Committee”) on 27 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code. The primary duty of the
Corporate Governance Committee is to implement the
Company’s internal control rules and advise and provide
guidance on matters relating to corporate governance. The
Corporate Governance Committee holds meetings monthly
and members of the Committee are required to report to
the Company Secretary, who reports to the Board during
the quarterly Board meetings. The Corporate Governance
Committee is chaired by Ms. Yan Yang, the manager of
the purchase department of the Company, and consists of
Mr. Weilun Liao, the vice president of the Company, Ms.
Chuanhong Bian, the director of the group finance department
of the Company, and Ms. Yan Cheng, the manager of the
group human resources department of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for
performing the corporate governance duties. The Company
adopted code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code as the duties
of the Corporate Governance Committee in performing its
corporate governance functions. During the year of 2015, the
Corporate Governance Committee has performed the following
duties in respect of its corporate governance function:

1. reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board;

2. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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Tkt Mr. Hongwen Yu
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(RZZ—RFMA+/HEHT) (resigned on 16 April 2015)
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TEAL 2t Ms. Chuanhong Bian

(R=—ZE—RAFtA-TMHAEZT) (appointed on 24 July 2015)
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reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and

compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors; and

reviewing the Company’s compliance with Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report).

HE BT
TtEERZEES

BEXE HER
Number of
Corporate
Governance
Committee

meetings Attendance

attended/held ratio

4/5 80%

3/3 100%

9/12 75%

10/10 100%

3/6 50%

6/6 100%
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Ms. Yan Yang, the manager of the purchase department of
the Company has been appointed by the board of directors
of the Company as a member of the Corporate Governance
Committee (“Corporate Governance Committee”) of the
Company with effect from 20 March 2015. Ms. Qiuyi Yu
and Mr. Hongwen Yu resigned as members of the Corporate
Governance Committee on 16 April 2015 and 26 June 2015
respectively. With effect from 24 July 2015, Ms. Chuanhong
Bian, the director of the group finance department of the
Company, and Ms. Yan Cheng, the manager of the group
human resources department of the Company, have been
appointed as members of the Corporate Governance
Committee, and Ms. Yan Yang, replacing Mr. Hongwen
Yu, has been appointed as the chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee.

The Board has established a Strategy and Investment
Committee (“Strategy and Investment Committee”) on 22
March 2013 with written terms of reference. The primary duties
of the Strategy and Investment Committee include, without
limitation: (1) report to the Board on its work, significant
decisions, findings and recommendation in connection with
the potential investment or strategic investment reviewed,
analyzed or evaluated; (2) remind the Board of the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules in connection with any
potential strategic investment reviewed, analyzed or evaluated;
(3) get informed of the backgrounds of the investments; (4)
ensure the investments are in compliance with local policies
and regulations; (5) execute its powers strictly within the
authorities granted by the Board through reviewing, analyzing,
evaluating and approving investment opportunities; and (6)
timely report to the Board if necessary. The Strategy and
Investment Committee comprises of two executive directors
and one independent non-executive director, namely Mr. Tien-
An Lo (Chairman), Mr. Dun-Ching Hung and Mr. Haiming Gao.

During the year, the Group had no material investments.
Accordingly, the Strategy and Investment Committee has not
held any meeting during the year.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The Statement of the Company’s
auditor as to its responsibility for the financial statements is
set out in the independent Auditor’s Report of this annual
report. There are no material uncertainties relating to events
or circumstances which would significantly cast doubt over the
Company'’s ability to operate as a going concern.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The Company has established a
Corporate Governance Committee which is responsible for
implementing and formulating the Group’s internal control
rules. An Internal Audit Department of the Company has been
established for monitoring the prudent and effective operation
of the Group’s risk management and internal control system.
The Corporate Governance Committee shall seek the approval
of the Audit Committee prior to the adoption of any such
rules or procedures. The Corporate Governance Committee
shall also be responsible for overseeing legal and regulatory
issues relating to the Company’s operations, and review the
implementation of internal controls on a monthly basis.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
systems of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year, and is
of the view that the system is adequate and effective.
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During the year, an analysis of the remuneration payable to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s Auditors, is set out
as follows:

AR
REER
ENz&H
Fees paid/
payable for
services
rendered
ARETTT
RMB’'000
2R - Audit service:
—T-hFERERB Audit services for 2015 2,200
FERZ SRS Non-audit service:
53l Training 50
FEE Total 2,250

NN B Z& E SN AR 75 4 FE 75 Vistra Corporate Services (HK)
Limited ™ ¥R EEHPBEE AR FNE - HEKRQF
FEBXABNARN SRR B HERTE -

R EWHRAE329% REBE-—E-nF+-A=+—HI-
FE - BEADEI DRI ENREREEEIIARIHH
RBER AN

The Company engages Mr. Chiu Ming King, the director of
Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited,
external service provider, as its company secretary. His primary
contact at the Company is Mr. Weilun Liao, the vice president
of Finance and accounting of the Company.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, during the
year ended 31 December 2015, Mr. Chiu has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his
skills and knowledge.
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The Company’s annual general meeting remains the principal
forum for dialogue with shareholders. Shareholders are
encouraged to participate in the proceedings and ask questions
about the resolutions being proposed and the operations of
the Group. The Company’s Articles of Association allows a
shareholder entitled to attend and vote to appoint more than
one proxy to attend and vote on behalf of the shareholder and
also provides that a proxy need not be a shareholder of the
Company.

Code provision E.1.3 of the CG Code stipulates that the issuer
should arrange for the notice to shareholders to be sent in the
case of the annual general meeting at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting and in the case of all other general
meetings at least 10 clear business days before the meeting.

The Company’s external auditor is invited to attend the
Company’s annual general meeting and will assist the Directors
in addressing queries from shareholders relating to the conduct
of the audit and the preparation and content of the auditors’
report.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and HKEx after
each shareholder meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

In accordance with article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders
who wish to propose resolutions may follow article 58 of the
Articles for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and
including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements and
procedures of article 58 are set out above.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Environmental Policy

The Company is committed to the sustainable development
of the environment and the society. Apart from making
corresponding investment that complies with relevant national
laws and reaches statutory standard, we have also referred
to the practices of industry players in developed counties and
prepared for sustainable management and self-improvement.
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Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company recognizes that the employees, customers and
suppliers of the Company are keys to the sustainability journey
of the Company. The Group expects employees, customers
and suppliers to be the companions along the way to business
growth who share benefits and share same experience in brand
growth.

During the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. The latest version of the Articles of
Association is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. Shareholder may refer to the Articles of
Association for details of their rights.

The Company maintains a website at www.christine.com.cn
which contains the Company’s publicly disclosed financial
information, annual reports, news releases, announcements,
the procedures that shareholders can use to propose a person
for election as a Director and corporate developments.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company as follows:

Address:  No. 33, Jinshajiang Road, Putuo District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China

Fax: 86-21-6286-3333

Email: info@christine.com.cn

Enquiries are dealt with in a timely and informative manner.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHRISTINE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Christine International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 74 to 163, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
29 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015
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FRBEEREE
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Share of profit of an associate

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss and total comprehensive

expense for the year attributable

to owners of the Company

Loss per share — Basic and diluted (cents)

Hrat
NOTES

18

10

12
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—E-5HF
2015
ARETT
RMB’000

1,061,750
(560,532)

501,218
13,776
(33,320)
(541,671)
(84,718)
(1,718)
382

(146,051)
(2,300)

(148,351)

(14.7)

—ZE—MmF
2014
ARBTIT
RMB’000
1,253,110
(661,147)

591,963
18,160
(28,516)
(628,442)
(88,303)
(1,485)
663

(135,960)
(14,825)

(150,785)

(14.9)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZF—AF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2015

—E-HF
2015
Kzt ARETT
NOTES RMB’000
FREBEE Non-current assets
W - E RERE Property, plant and equipment 13 547,941
B AR E FIE Prepaid lease payments for land 14 76,294
E A E Intangible assets 15 16,712
Heke Rental deposits 11,389
BEIIERBEEZRS Deposits for purchase of non-current assets 16 28,259
EES Goodwill 17 14,838
R—EBE R ZKE Investment in an associate 18 2,325
At ESRIEE Available-for-sale financial assets 24 35,000
EEFIBEE Deferred tax assets 19 25,001
757,759
REEE Current assets
w8 Inventories 20 29,286
B 5 Rk E A W R IE Trade and other receivables 21 74,133
fEURBAE A E)FKIA Amounts due from related companies 22 4,929
TR &R 1T Restricted bank deposits 23 51,700
RITHEBREIRE Bank balances and cash 25 517,990
678,038
REBBEE Current liabilities
B 5 M E A RN A Trade and other payables 26 121,468
BRES Deposit from customers 27 491,861
RS EEE N R FRIE Amounts due to related companies 28 8,197
JERTHRIR Tax payables 2,443
FERTRR S Dividend payable 4,708
628,677
MENE EF Net current assets 49,361
BEERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 807,120

T — R4 Annual Report 2015

—EF0F
2014
ARKETT
RMB'000

641,462
78,416
18,261
12,864
34,602
20,147

1,943

25,636

833,331

32,957
79,224
43,892
40,189
508,545

704,807

142,570
425,055
7,117
4,302
4,708

583,752

121,055

954,386
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZF—AF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2015

FRBEE
EREBBRE
BTN

MRAS K (i
BeA
1

AKARER AR
R

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred income

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to owners

of the Company

FVUENBAZGEAVBREIN _Z—R"EF=ZA-_TBEE

EEHERIRETIE -

TRIAASTBIFREREBR A F Christine International Holdings Limited =&

WHATEEFRAEE

EHZ
Tien-An Lo

EF
DIRECTOR

—E-HF T g

2015 2014

et AR¥T T ANRETIT
NOTES RMB'000 RMB’000
19 24,254 23,599
29 2,420 2,926
780,446 927,861

30 8 8
780,438 927,853

780,446 927,861

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 163 were
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
29 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

K=
Nianlin Zhu
E3
DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-ZT—AF+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

KAREEAELRS
Attributable to owners of the Company
e
Reserves
Bx  ROEE BHRE EtRE AERHHE REEF fit CH
Statutory
Share Share Special Other surplus  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserves  earnings Total Total

ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETE
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(Ma)  (Mb) (M)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)

RZE-NE—-F—Hz#&s Balanceat 1 January 2014 8 311,833 235,868 9,694 109,681 409,663 1,076,739 1,076,747
FREERIERZEE Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year - - = - - (150785  (150,785)  (150,785)
BRNEREE RARG Recognition of equity-settled share-based
REEAF(HE31) payments (Note 31) - - - 1,899 = = 1,899 1,899
wHAE Profit appropriation - - - - 1,309 (1,309) - =

RZZ-ME+=-A=+—A Balance at 31 December 2014
Wd i 8 311,833 235,868 11,593 110,990 257,569 927,853 927,861

EREERZERZEE Loss and total comprehensive expense

for the year - - - - - (148351)  (148351)  (148,351)

RUERESRARD Recognition of equity-settled share-based
BEB 2R3 payments (Note 31) - - - 936 - S 936 936
IR (MEE31) Share options forfeited (Note 31) = = = (2,322) = 2322 = =
iy lpaliy Profit appropriation - - = = 606 (606) = =

RZZ-RFE+=-A=+—A Balance at 31 December 2015
Wd i 8 311,833 235,868 10,207 111,596 110,934 780,438 780,446
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

P

(a)

ZEBRERLERAHTRABRAR ([ LERAHTHR_ZFN
FAFERERKRE DS TRRMARAF ([ LEE TR RIE8%
BuEk DERFAHT  DESAABARAR([EAER ) RERR
HOTRMERAR([FAREFST ) 2 EHRARFEEMEELE
ERARARNNEERARSAERAT LWmMETZREEMA
PRARTER R B a2 (-

S B R IR R B D R B AR R I 2 B (TSR IR
AFE -

RIBEBHEERRERUARARRDENBRR 2 AESRAER -
BB R AR EAREE A BT R 2 AR & AT R A &
BER((PEAR G R DRE M BRRAMZ M2 BRBHIOET
ZI0%BAEERRER - EETRHREERBEZEBTENER
BREME AR Z50% + A2 LA B R EK -

AEBSHRBUARBHEFZBBR(E)  RARNKERCETH
KA - R - P BB R REERSRREEEERAR - R
IR RESE TS ER R BB AREMEARZ25% °

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The balance represented the reserve arising from Shanghai Christine
Foodstuff Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Christine”) acquired the remaining 8%
interest in Shanghai Ji Yuan De Foodstuff Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Ji Yuan
De") from non-controlling interest in 2008 and the paid in capital and
reserve of Shanghai Christine, Shanghai Shuanghong Bakery Co., Ltd.
("Shuang Hong Bakery”) and Nanjing Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing Christine”) recognised as special reserve upon completion of
group reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Other reserve represents fair values of outstanding share options
recognised as expense over their vesting periods on a straight-line basis.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations and the Articles of
Association of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries, the PRC subsidiaries
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit after taxation reported
in their financial statements prepared in accordance with relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations applicable to enterprises
established in the PRC (the “PRC GAAP") to the statutory surplus
reserve. The appropriation to statutory surplus reserve may cease if
the balance of the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the
registered capital of the relevant PRC subsidiaries.

The statutory surplus reserves can be used to make up prior year
losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means
of capitalization issue. However, when converting the statutory surplus
reserve of the PRC subsidiaries into capital, the balance of such reserve
remaining unconverted must not be less than 25% of the registered
capital of the relevant PRC subsidiaries.

mRIAASTBIFRIER AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited —Z—FA % Annual Report 2015



AERTRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZT—AF+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

REES

B A 5 1R

HE

BT N
HEWE - BERRBZER
(@) R RRR

DGR R R A
Y% BERRBITE
BB

AN A E R

WE -~ BB LRERIERE
B RE RS

VAR 17 A L8 2 9 R B S
fRRR BB R R BT BY)

BERSEHALL LD

Reng
B 5 ME MRS RIER D
BERERED

MR BIRITERCE )R
JRE W B i 2 R SRR

(4B 0)
FERD
B 5 MEMENRERD
BEReRmoRd)
FERRRE R R FRIRE N OB )

rERPEFA)RE
EARIE IR

RETEE IS (TR ) IREF 8

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:

Interest income

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

(Reversal) recognition of allowance for doubtful
debts

Share of profit of an associate

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization of prepaid lease payment

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss on goodwill

Share-based payment expense

Release of asset-related government grants

Operating cash flows before movements in working

capital
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease in rental deposit
(Increase) decrease in restricted bank deposits
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from related
companies
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade and other payables
Increase (decrease) in deposit from customers
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to related
companies

Cash generated from (used in) operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities

—Z—AFF 3R Annual Report 2015
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2015
AR®T T
RMB*000

(146,051)

(7,135)
212

(1,085)

(382)
87,640
1,764
2,122
51,308
5,309
936

(506)

(5,868)
6,179
1,475

(11,511)

37,805

3,671
(23,605)

66,806

2,235

77,187
(2,869)

74,318

—EF0F
2014
ARKETT
RMB'000

(135,960)

(9,209)
47

865
(663)
101,509
1,749
2,122
44,132
1,899
(506)

5,985
12,137
234
6,541

(39,870)
8,092

(26,092)

(122,063)

(15,408)

(170,444)
(5,579)

(176,023)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

REEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES

ERLE Interest received

HEME - BER Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
RABFTISRUE equipment

D& A& BB EFTS KA Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets

L E 5 B B Acquisition of other financial assets

RN E S REE Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets

BERVAE Purchase of intangible assets

EBEME  BEMEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment

WEEEMAR S FE Net cash used in investing activities

Be MBEEEEYEMORD ) F5E Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

R—A—BAZReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

R+_RA=+—HB2HE4&RIREZEY Cash and cash equivalents (comprising bank balances
(BIERITEHREIRE) and cash) at 31 December
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—E-AHF
2015
ARETT
RMB’000

5,531

449,404
(447,800)
(35,000)
(215)
(36,793)

(64,873)

9,445
508,545

517,990

—EF0F
2014
ARKETT
RMB’000

5,284

101
609,125
(605,200)

(239)
(64,146)

(55,075)

(231,098)
739,643

508,545
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RRABR-_ZEENGF=ZA+—BEHSHEEM
REZ2ZBRBRAR  ARMNME=-ZFT—=F=A
=R REBEBERIAAERARI([BRM])E
RET - EE AR REEBEZFETMEKZSino
Century Universal Corporation ° N2 &) Z =t E 5
HohE A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

KRR —EREZERAR - HRPEARKNE
(THFEDRIZMBRREENEMITEREERH
& ZEMBRR 2 X EEBHBEHNHITEIS

RAEMBRRAARE(TARE D2 BRARAR
HIE AR Z e EHAR -

The Company was incorporated on 11 March 2008
as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Island and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 23 February
2012. Its parent company is Sino Century Universal
Corporation, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. The address of the registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are primarily engaged in the
production and sales of bakery products. The detailed
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note
38.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB*), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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FERHET RS 2B B KR &S| Application of new and revised HKFRSs

AEBEERAFEFTRXEATIBHEESHMAE The Group has applied for the following amendments
([BEAGHAS ) BERZEBPBRELED ZELT to HKFRSs issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
PN Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the

current year:

HBgt AR RERAMGE : BEHK Amendments to  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
EAELACCHRY) HKAS 19 Contributions

EBMBREED FAYEREEN T FF Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
CEHIEN) —E-—FRBRCFENE HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

BBUEREER BEYERSEN _T——FF Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
(EETA) ZE-=FRMCFENE HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

EAFEERBERYBREEIS T AE AL ERAK The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the

FERBAFENVERRERAL SZEH5E 5 current year has had no material impact on the Group'’s

RREHNIRBE W ES AL o financial performance and positions for the current and

prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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E M EARERNEET REIETERHBHRE New or revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
b= effective

REENRIR R E R AT B M8 40 i 8 R AE BT E] &2
®iE HTE/%WH{%#&iEE‘J

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

BEEMBEMEERNESRE SHMmIA HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

EBPBREENF145 EERETRER? HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

EREMSMEEREIS KRERRPMINANZ HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

ey Customers'

ERMBEmE AR WHER G A alfER2 Amendments to  Accounting for Acquisitions of
F115RUBEIA) LA HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations?

BERGHERE 15 HERET S Amendments to  Disclosure Initiative3
CHEN HKAS 1

ERGHENFI6RR  BETEREEA T EN Amendments to  Clarification of Acceptable
BB GFTHERE385% abzis HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation and
(83T A) HKAS 38 Amortisation?

ERGHENFIRR BE: £ENEDS Amendments to  Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
ARG ENEAR HKAS 16 and
CHEN HKAS 41

BRGTERE27 B mER R EE Amendments to  Equity Method in Separate Financial
(83T A) HKAS 27 Statements?

BB SRS 2R REEBEEBEZNRHAEE Amendments to  Sale or Contribution of Assets
FIORREBSTTER EIZEAEDNENTFE HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
2285 (18514) HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Ventures

BB SRS 2R REEHE  ERAHRRS Amendments Investment Entities: Applying the
£10%: - BAVB@mE to HKFRS 10, Consolidation Exception?
ERE125F BB & HKFRS 12 and
HERI 2855 (1E7]A) HKAS 28

BB EmE AR FH B R R —E—— Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
(BT A) FE_T-NFFHZ HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?
s

1 RZZT—N\F—A— Az EERR 2 FEBRRER 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 R-ZZE-—RF-A—ARHEERRERERTEMBRELE 2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning

Al 2 FE IR R AR AR on or after 1 January 2016

3 E’\ T—RF—A— Ak HERR 2 FE R AR 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

4 RFE B HAsk H1Z R R 2 12 BRI A3 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

BRI XATRE SN - BT AR AR FTR] R BB/
BREAMEFT A AEBRRNFE MBEFENTTE
RARMAR,HZEFE M ERRABNREL &
BEAYE -

Except as described below, the new and amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective have had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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EBPRHRELERFER I SWMTA ]

R-ZFZNFRAENEEUHHRELEREIRIIADE
Mt ESREENTRE - BEMBREERFISHFE
BR-_T-TELET BADENFESRABMN
RIRIEERBRE - WRZT—=F— B - &
ARG NFRE - RZZE—WERMBEERH
WEEFIR S —ERETRATEMA) BRATRE
BEZRERE  Rb)FEASETHEEFTASIANS
BEAZEBARIFEIR((EEEMCEEEAR
RNFEFIRDFERR - BOBRREREFELAER
EaT -

BB REERFESRANEEREMANT -

. PEBEEGEANENREMTA @ R
EAtE |8 ZEEREREE  HRGRE
AR A HERE - LEZ - REERAR
EMBEMREBRAENRAEREZEHRE - U
RERXNAERAEERSN S Z2EHRE
MBZEBRE  —RONER ST HREER
R IR SR NG & - FTB M EB IR E MR
BREORER ST HRBREIRATERE -
BEAN - IRIBFE AW RELERNEN - BER
TEHRAIRE 2 B2 - UREMEERAZ R
BARE (WIFEFEEEE) A FERERE
RABRBA BB TER o

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010
to include the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a
‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
(FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as below:

° All recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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ERPBHREENFRISHMITE |(8)

REERBEATEFAERZ SRMAEMNS
BEMBHREERNEIRRE DeBMBER
ERREEMERERNFEZIFAEZERIRN
Hit2EBAZS] - BRIFNEMEEBAZHR
?E\EETHI@QEZ%E E.Jzijzi'm%am
ST - AlfERIW - BERABEER
EHHER ﬂ? BHERIEENOE xiia
& o IRIBE B EFHERIEI - HERKRAF
TE.#)\TE i ERMBEZEHAFEEHEHE
2R BaT 25 -

REMEEZRAEMNS @ BEBEFHAERIFE39
FETNZEELAEEFEENGERAR - &5
IS mEERFOF A TIRBHEESBEEN
AE - EAEEEEER A EEENSHREH
BB EEEERXSBHEEBEZ 28
AR URBMEERE 8 VBRI R 2 &
oy ﬂi/,\ FRECESEHHIERE
EBE -

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont'd)

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss was presented in
profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognised.

T —REER Annual Report 2015 THRIZSTEIBRIER AR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

85



A TS AR TR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

ERPBHREENFRISHMITE |(8)

. el —MREP S RERE =BE P ST EIE
Rl - AT - MARERBEREL P EFTEIE
ZEERSHRHBEAREEMN - FHIREMAEE
RIEREIMTAZ TRBERIAR G ERIELH
SRTRE 2 IFERIAR RBRK SR Lo
BRRORI S AR 1 AR A R X AT AR 7 B4R | R RIVEX
K RN BRETERTZ - FTRER
R AZNBEEEHERRREREE 2R
o

EEHEHAREREAYBHREEAFOWRE - Al
SHAEENEREENSRMBEMERSBENY
- -PAKESREENS @ NKFAREMATEZ
TERHAEGMEL TIER

BRMBHEEEI1SH REFFEN 2 ]

R-FE—MFRABONEBIM RS EAFE 1555
E-RE-2HEAREBRFEEEFPANMEL
AR - REBMBHRELERFISRERR - H
RERAREHREL S ENF 185K s BER
FHERIE 1SR A L | B R e E | -

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont'd)

o The new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of hedge
accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that
are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition,
the effectiveness test has been overhauled and
replaced with the principle of an ‘economic
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also
been introduced.

The Directors anticipated that the adoption of HKFRS
9 in the future may have an impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s financial
assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In May 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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AR EMEARAEMBMELENF1S5RNTE

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Cont'd)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

3 Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have an
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.
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The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The provision of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) regarding presentation of
accounts and directors’ reports and audits became
effective for the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015. Further, the disclosure
requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
annual accounts have been amended with reference
to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly the presentation and disclosure
information in the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 have
been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2014 are presented and disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements based on the
new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing
Rules but not under the new CO or amended Listing
Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

—REE R Annual Report 2015
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use
in HKAS 36 Impairment of assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income/consolidated statement of profit
or loss from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less any accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit,
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associates. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group'’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group'’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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Investments in associates (Cont'd)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’ consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and
other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which
time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing

managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

—REE R Annual Report 2015
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Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

° the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

. itis probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect

of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.
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Leasing (Cont'd)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-
owned and no individual land ownership right exists.
The Group acquired the rights to use certain land.
The premiums paid for such rights are treated as
prepayments for operating leases and presented as
“prepaid lease payments for land” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the amount
of benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
related service.

T —REER Annual Report 2015 THRIZSTEIBRIER AR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

97



98

an\ /=~ jﬁ%#&%ﬁfj
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

URBAER 2 NRRX S
LESEERURDRER AR
[AIE 8 IR I FBIRAE R 1

PR 2 A TEZZ AR EBREORKHB
Hz NFEEE  YREBHNZERESE  ME
sSEREEIERBER L E ([ E D) o

RBERR - AEBEFTEHANRKRER < BEE
2B 2 fhE - REBHNERIRE G 2 E(WE)
RBEAER - UERFFAXRREERIE - Hib
B IMERRERE -

BREERBRRTORRE  BERS
HBRSEBREMRE AR -

H bl 1 | HERR

BiIE

S TR SRR A B (N TR ELRIE R IR 2 A

BN IR

FEN BT BIR FARRBUE NG E - RN EAMEF
Fﬁ%ﬁiTWﬂZ%iEEM&ﬁM%MQTTW
ZBEBME - ERBEMNEBESERREBEEEA
BRPE2RZBHABETR - AEBERBEHRE
M EE R 2 B R ERMHIRAE

TRIAASTBIFREREBR A F Christine International Holdings Limited =&

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options/shares granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options/shares
granted at the date of grant is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity as contribution from shareholders
("other reserve”).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to other reserve.

When the shares options are forfeited after the vesting
date, the amount previously recognized in “other
reserve” will be transferred to “retained earnings”.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

—REE R Annual Report 2015
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Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
differences associated with the investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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Taxation (Cont'd)
Deferred tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress as described
below), are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
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Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets (other than construction in progress) less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at
costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans and
receivables’. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including rental
deposit, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from related companies, other financial assets, bank
balances and cash and restricted bank deposits) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, or held-to-maturity investments.
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Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income, until the financial asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment
have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will

enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont‘d)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognized in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont‘d)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables, amounts due to related companies, and
dividend payable) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition (Cont'd)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors
are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

At 31 December 2015, deferred tax assets of
RMB25,001,000 (2014: RMB25,636,000) in relation
to bad-debt provision of trade receivables, temporary
differences of property, plant and equipment and
temporary differences of sales recognized, payroll
accruals and tax losses have been recognised in the
consolidated statements of financial position. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax
losses of RMB312,185,000 (2014: RMB218,350,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly depends
on whether sufficient profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which such a reversal takes place.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Cont'd)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated
which is determined based on value in use. The value
in use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of
goodwill was approximately RMB14.8 million (2014:
RMB20.1 million) and RMB5.3 million (2014: Nil)
impairment loss has been recognized.

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant
and equipment

As described in Note 3 above, the Group reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual value of property,
plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. For the current year, there was no change in
the useful lives and residual value of certain items of
property, plant and equipment.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Cont'd)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and prepaid lease payments for
land

As described in Note 3 above, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and prepaid lease payment for land
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Determining
whether property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and prepaid lease payment for land are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the assets
and the fair value less costs of disposal. The value
in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of the assets and from its ultimate disposal and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

At 31 December 2015, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of RMB95.4 million in relation to
property, plant and equipment (2014: RMB44.1
million).
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The chief operating decision maker (CODM) reviews the
group as a whole and internal reports reported to the
CODM included only revenue analysis by product types
and no other discretionary information is prepared
for resource allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, no operating segment information is
presented.

Revenue analysis by product types

Wz

Revenue
—E-—fHEF —Z—pOE
2015 2014
ARET T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
772,213 909,205
94,810 93,754
118,218 157,671
76,509 92,480
1,061,750 1,253,110

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue, loss before taxation, assets
and liabilities were derived from or located in the
PRC, and therefore no geographical information is
presented.

No single customer contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for both 2015 and 2014.
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—E-EF —T—MmF
2015 2014
AR¥F T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWA Interest income 7,135 9,209
ERATHE B (BT 5E) Government grants (Note) 6,135 8,445
% bR B B R 2 BT B Release of asset-related government grants 506 506
13,776 18,160
MzY: ZESEIERMNPEZEEERREHREZERMA Note: The amounts primarily represented unconditional incentives
3 MR TETS 2 AR IR - BUASEEERERE - 25/ received from local authorities by the group entities located
BYABRFIVEENEABA TS 048 - RS A E A AR 2N B B2 {a] in the PRC for eminent contribution and encouragement of
BERM - its business development. These grants are accounted for as
immediate financial support without future related costs to be

incurred and unrelated to any assets.
—E-FF —T—MmF
2015 2014
AR¥F T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BIEAR R BIRE ST ES 2 W Gain on expired unpresented coupons (Note)

(BffaE) 16,984 14,911
HEWE - W= NMRIEETE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (212) (47)
FE 5 Uz (E518) Exchange gains (losses) 3,929 (649)
B B R H AR 2 e Gain on disposal of scrap and other materials 479 475
VI R KR EREEE Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment (51,308) (44,132)
PR EE B Impairment loss of goodwill (5,309) =
Hitb Others 2,117 926

(33,320) (28,516)
Mz AEBEMBERRTREERARIIEESANERTERKE Note: The Group issues and sells coupons to the customers which

RAMBMAREER - RIEEFISEK  AREERBES
BELS ZEERELHRINRETREZEIRRY
% AEEIAEEHEOREEREHE2HETH AR
BrizE A BER D AR IS o

are non-refundable and are redeemed in exchange for
products of the Group within a fixed future period. After the
expiry of the coupons, the Group has no obligation to accept
their redemption by the customers. The amounts represented
the gains recognized upon the release of the coupon liabilities
when the Group considered that all its contractual and
constructive obligations had been fully discharged after taking
into account an additional grace period granted to customers
after expiry.
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Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

Directors’ remuneration
Contribution to retirement benefits schemes
Other staff costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Operating lease rentals in respect of
—land use rights
— rented retail outlets
Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
(Reversal) recognition of allowance for doubtful
debts
Impairment loss recognised in respect of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwvill

ERIHSTERIRBAR AT Christine International Holdings Limited —Z— R &4 Annual Report 2015

—E-AF
2015
AR®TT
RMB’'000

2,169
46,496
307,075

355,740
87,640
1,764
212

2,122
175,569
2,496
560,532

(1,085)

51,308
5,309

—E—-E
2014
ARET T
RMB’'000
2,151
49,473
326,664

378,288
101,509
1,749
47

2,122
196,931
2,832
661,147

865

44,132
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(a) EEREEIHTEMEWT :
HES
Executive Directors
BAZ* W HEE
Tien-An Dun-Ching
Lo* Yulin**  Hung
ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
“E-EE N0
FoREMER  Salaries and other benefit 1,236 18 It}
KESMEA  Performance related bonus
(M) (Note) 400 - -
ame Total emoluments 1,636 18 3
“E-mE 2014
ZoREMER  Salaries and other benefit 1236 - IE]
KBS Performance related bonus
(M) (Note) 400 - -
ame Total emoluments 1636 = 3
* BREHITE

* %

fiE -

PRARTEEMETERRKS

RZZB—RAFEA=1+MA MELERZEARIE
PITEF - RZT—HAF+-A=+=8  MHB%
AERERNTES - MERALEERBT AR
TEE -

BEREER T —
BIIFITES

WE+=—A=ZThBEZER
LERBREELE -

KRBT 2ZAARRRTSBBETE

MEEAKEE

HIRRHARM MR

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments are as follows:
FUTES BukdTES
Non-
executive
director Independent non-executive directors
SR BEEer KW B BEX a3
Chi-Ming  Haiming Nianlin Weide Wanwen
Chou** Gao*** Zhu Luo*** Su Total
ARETT ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
B 1x] 18 - 1] 1769
2 2 = 2 5 400
;3 143 143 - 143 2,169
43 - 143 143 143 1,751
- - - - - 400
43 - 143 143 143 2,151

* %

Note:

Chief executive

Mr. Yu Lin was appointed as a non-executive
director from 24 July 2015. On 23 December 2015,
Mr. Yu Lin was re-designated as an executive
director and Mr. Chi-Ming Chou was re-designated
as a non-executive director.

Mr. Haiming Gao was appointed as an independent
non-executive director to replace Mr. Weide Luo
from 29 December 2014.

The performance related bonus is determined by
reference to the individual performance and market
trend.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown

above were mainly for their service in
connection with the management of the affairs
of the Group.
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HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

(a)

(b)

TRIAASTBIFREREBR A F Christine International Holdings Limited =&

ESRERUTEMS ()

FRIFATEZIBIRTETHE TR AE
EFREAEEEFRERBMER

T—OF  HERAEEA

K=
(=5 17MEE7HJ‘}ZE1\1‘@M@

Z-HFR
A EMBE

RER AEERBEAESNINE  (FAR
SIEFMARK BN INARNE BB 2 2R
1ERBERAEIE - NER - MEESHETATH

TEREFAL

AEBALERSHFALEE —R(ZF—
F:—R)ARRESE  HMSEN EXFE
ZEWER  HENE(ZF—M4F : mB) AL
ZBET

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments are as follows: (Cont’d)

The non-executive directors’ and independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their service as directors
of the Group.

No other fees, retirement benefits or other
emoluments have been paid to the directors for
both 2015 and 2014.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived any emoluments during
the year.

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, one (2014: one) was
director of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures in note above.
The emoluments of the remaining four (2014:
four) individuals were as follows:

—E-AF —Z—mF

2015 2014

AR®TT AREBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000

e MEAMAmER Salaries and other benefits 1,690 1,746

RIRRFIF SR Contribution to retirement benefits schemes 129 55

R&AD 1 3R Share-based payment 127 628
)15 K 2% 3R 68 HE B < 31 Discretionary and performance related

(F3E) incentive payments (Note) 90 120

2,036 2,549

MaE . RIREMIEBNRSERARBETISBEET Note:  The performance related incentive payment

is determined by reference to the individual
performance and market trend.
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e ISR MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT—AF+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

(b) HBBSFALE

£%1,000,000%7T

1,000,001/ T2 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001/ 042,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001 752,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7T % 3,000,000/ 7T

FA - AREBEALEESHFALNME
ERREMBAEE R INBE < R BERAS
B o FR - ARREHA THERE B

K> m

o

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Cont'd)

The five highest paid individuals’ emoluments

were within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

AE

Number of individuals

—E-AF
2015
4

—ET—NF
2014

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the five highest paid individuals has
waived any emoluments during the year.

R EMER([DERERD PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT")

BEFERETR Under (over) provision in respect of prior years
EERE(MIFE19) Deferred tax (Note 19)
MIBF S 25 Total tax expense

782 &) & Christine International Holdings (BVI) Co., Ltd.
(T Christine BVI]) ¥R Al #A R PTG 1 2 BIKFE T ©

—E-AF
2015

AR®T T
RMB’000

975
35
1,010

1,290

2,300

where income tax is exempted.

—ZE—NF
2014
AR¥ETIT
RMB000

4,825
342
5,167

9,658

14,825

The Company and Christine International Holdings (BVI)
Co., Ltd. (“Christine BVI") are registered in countries
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HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

AR AREZWALIFELEBRREETE - RIALKRIE
HEBFSTEAE -

RIBH B BERSTEREEAFBOEEES - P
BB A RERHER25% °

RIBHBERATOERERGEDN - A —FTN\F—H—
B BIIFNBEREE](RETBIRIELEHENL
BT RETBERALEHRBESIGH - EAERRAR
RERBISMYBEERBE)NREERTEREL
)RR 0 332 1 7 AT AR IR K% ) L i e ) B Bl BB 2R A
MIBHIFARN - EAZEN SR ERETE AR
FUERT  hENBARXN FRFEEERNF
BEREBARI0% R E R B EREHABHON -
it BEREF BB QRS T XINEAREMEN
STV h B4 -

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group’s income neither arises in nor is derived
from Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT and Implementation
Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate applicable to
the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

Under the relevant tax law and implementation
regulations in the PRC, withholding income tax is
applicable to interest or dividends earned and payable
to investors that are “non-tax resident enterprises”,
which do not have an establishment or place of
business in the PRC, or which have such establishment
or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or
place of business, in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 to the extent such
interest or dividends have their sources within the PRC.
Under such circumstances, interest or dividends paid
by the PRC subsidiaries to offshore group entities shall
be subject to the withholding income tax at 10% or
a lower treaty rate. Therefore, withholding income
tax has been provided for based on the anticipated
dividends to be paid by the PRC subsidiaries.

mRIAASTBIFRIER AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited —Z—FA % Annual Report 2015
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HE-ZT—AF+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

FARBEX LSS ER 2 HiRNT

B 5% A 5 18

BERREAE BN
()

B R TUa M B AT N P S
2

BEFERET R
DMEBE R REN &

RERAMBERZEITE

RERTRBECFE

RIBaHHER Z ISR

Mz : FIGHAXERRPEEREZ

o
H o
=

accounting loss as follows:

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the

—F-REF —T—mF

2015 2014

ARET T ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB*000

Loss before taxation (146,051) (135,960)

Income tax expense calculated at applicable tax

rate (Note) (36,513) (33,990)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in

determining taxable profit 1,818 1,265

Under provision in respect of prior years 35 342

Effect on share of profit of an associate (95) (164)
Effect of unrecognised deductible temporary

differences 13,491 12,505

Effect of unrecognised tax losses 23,564 34,867

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 2,300 14,825

EEDEFER R E25%E Note: Income tax expense is basically calculated at the rate of 25%

which is the statutory EIT rate of the PRC entities.
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HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

ARBRFALERN - EIRFEZR N EABRE
BREHERETEZF RN EMRE (ZT—0F :
&) -

BREREBEEINIZFRARQREE ARREERE
E-E-—AER-E-WNE+-_A=+—HILEFE
1,010,188,000f% B B/ TR (A FHE o

BE_Z—hAFEKR-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HLHF
& BB ARITEINZ BEL R

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during
the year, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2014: Nil).

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to the owners of the Company for
the year and 1,010,188,000 issued shares for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

There were no potential ordinary shares outstanding
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

mRIAASTBIFRIER AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited —Z—FA % Annual Report 2015
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HE-ZT—AF+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

RENEEE
Leasehold
improvements
AREFTL
RMB'000
A Cost
RZZ-ME—F—F  At1lanuary 2014 170,670
AE Additions 16,961
EEE Transfer -
HE Disposals (7,858)
itk At 31 December 2014
TZA=1-H 179,773
NE Additions 17,232
2 Transfer 8,349
e Disposals (9,701)
R-E-1F At 31 December 2015
T-A=1-A 195,653
ZHERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
RZZ-ME-F—8  At1January 2014 133,753
ERifE Depreciation for the year 26,487
e Disposals (7.859)
RERRRAE Impairment losses recognised
EE in profit or loss 3,139
itk At 31 December 2014
TZA=1-H 155,521
FRITE Depreciation for the year 21,495
HE Disposals (9.701)
NEEREZHESE Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss 1,408
R_Z-1%F At 31 December 2015
+ZA=1+-H 168,723
FEFE Net book value
RZE-T1F At 31 December 2015
+-A=1+-H 26,930
i Sy i3 At 31 December 2014
+ZAZ+-H 24,252

B¥

Buildings
ARETT
RMB000

486,686
15939

502,625

20

502,645

112,424
25,012

137,436

31,987

169,423

333,222

365,189

BERRE
Machinery
and
equipment
ARETT
RMB'000

412,929
5713
2,660

(544)

420,758

3,053

1,446
(111)

425,146

204,751
37,406
(472)

40,586

282,211

24,320
(92)

49,626

356,125

69,021

138,487

AE

Motor
vehicles

ARETT
RMB'000

19,044
904

(1,480)

18,468

804

(578)

18,694

12,465
1,767
(1,433)

12,799

1,326
(520)

13,605

5,089

5,069

#ER
BORE
Fixtures and
and office
equipment
AREFTL
RMB'000

136,296
6,252

(1,046)

141,502

1479
205
(1,156)

142,030

98,320
10,837
(1,017)

407

108,547

8512
(1,021)

274

116,312

25,718

32,955

HRIR
Construction-
in-progress

ARETT
RMB'000

53,621
23,949
(2,660)

74,910

23,051
(10,000)

87,961

87,91

74910

Total

ARETT
RMB'000

1,279,246
69,718

(10,928)

1,338,036

45,639

(11,546)

1,312,129

561,713
101,509
(10,780)

44132

696,574

87,640
(11,334)

51,308

824,188

547,941

641,462
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HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

REBHARUATBREAER-_ST—AF+_-A
=+—HBAARK11,198,00070( = —PU4F : AREE
12,442,00070) 2 EFEUS HEEEE -

Eig - BRERRBEE (ERTRBIN EH R
i SRR B AR (51 T 68 PR 48 R A LA IR 51
R -

HEMERE s =F2

(& T A {5 A AP

MERZBEE
BF 2.5%-4.5%
Hees KR 9%
E 18%
EERARE 18.2%

REEEFANFEC i - URBARPEBEORS -

RAFERD ZBEBR

FRN - ARAEBE 2 HERFARNERE  EEEEZ

PREREREMAREESRESESAEM([BEE
AEBEMDZIRESE ZEEEREASBZAE
MEEE B NEREARES M ARE - ZEZ
EBHARRRAEEIEARKS51,300,0007t(=F—M0
F: ARM44,100,0007T) * WERBZAERL
o HEEEZAKBSENIZEFEREBRET &
EFREEMRZMARATF140%(ZZT—04F :
13.8%) °

MEBRD T AREA Bl K EE 1RE -

TRIAASTBIFREREBR A F Christine International Holdings Limited =&

The Group has not obtained the title certificates for
the buildings located in the PRC with carrying amounts
of RMB11,198,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB12,442,000).

The above items of property, plant and equipment
(other than construction in progress) are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives after taking into
account their estimated residual value on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements The shorter of the lease
term or estimated useful
lives of three years

Buildings 2.5%-4.5%
Machinery and equipment 9%
Motor vehicles 18%
Fixtures and office equipment 18.2%

The Group'’s buildings are located on land in the PRC
under long and medium-term leases.

Impairment losses recognised in the current
year

During the year, as a result of the poor financial
performance of the Group, the management
carried out a review of the recoverable amount of
manufacturing plant and other related assets of
each cash generating unit (the “CGU"). These assets
includes Group'’s leasehold improvement, machinery
and equipment and fixtures and office equipment. The
review led to the recognition of an impairment loss
of RMB51.3 million (2014: RMB44.1 million), which
has been recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable
amount of the relevant assets has been determined on
the basis of their value in use. The discount rate used in
measuring value in use was 14.0% (2014: 13.8%) per
annum.

The impairment losses have been included in profit or
loss in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

—REE R Annual Report 2015
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HE-ZT—AF+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

—E-AfF —E—-mE
2015 2014
AR¥TT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BREE CARRYING AMOUNT
REF] At the beginning of the year 80,440 82,562
E Uk iE—REM B AR mEEA Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary = -
F AR Charged for the year (2,122) (2,122)
RER At the end of the year 78,318 80,440
B B TNMEEERNRZ Less: Current portion to be charged within
BNERES M (FTAB S & next year included in trade and other
E e GRTE) receivables 2,024 2,024
JERNERER (7 Non-current portion 76,294 78,416
ZeRELNPE P HREEE T - WIRERE The amount represents medium-term operating
HA38E50F THER M GH © leasehold lands located in the PRC and is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term of 38 to 50

years.
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HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

B4 BE HER® &5t
Sales
Software Trademark network Total
AREFTT AREFTT ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
2% COST
R-ZZE—mF—HF—H At 1 January 2014 9,115 10,635 5,860 25,610
NE Additions 239 = = 239
RZZE—mF At 31 December 2014
+=-—A=+—H 9,354 10,635 5,860 25,849
NE Additions 215 = - 215
RZE—R%F At 31 December 2015
+=-—A=+—8H 9,569 10,635 5,860 26,064
i E AMORTISATION
N-ZE—mE—HA—H At 1 January 2014 2,401 2,217 1,221 5,839
FRB Charge for the year 924 532 293 1,749
RZZT—NF At 31 December 2014
+-—A=+—H 3,325 2,749 1,514 7,588
FERk Charge for the year 939 532 293 1,764
RZZE—HF At 31 December 2015
+-—A=+—~H 4,264 3,281 1,807 9,352
SRMEE CARRYING VALUES
RZZT—HRF At 31 December 2015
+=-—A=+—8 5,305 7,354 4,053 16,712
RIZZE—UF At 31 December 2014
+-—A=+—8H 6,029 7,886 4,346 18,261
NERFPAEASRRAERFY  REHRERNAT The above intangible assets have definite useful lives
FREE - which are amortised on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:
LGS 20% Software 20%
miE 5% Trademark 5%
SHE MG 5% Sales network 5%
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Bz

ZZ—AF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

—E-HF —ET-F
2015 2014
AR¥T R ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BEUTREZZS Deposits for purchase in respect of
— T AR — Land use rights 5,000 5,000
o ERN S ICES) - Property, plant and equipment (Note) 23,259 29,602
28,259 34,602
fiE: R-E-RAF+-_A=+-RZASRERRRERRLE— Note:  The balance as at 31 December 2015 includes a prepayment

mERMERARF([— @] - FESHME22(a)) EEA
[R¥#18,108,0007C(=Z —M4F : AR18,108,0007T) Z K
H UEERE  NAREAH  LARSNEETE -

of RMB18,108,000 to Shanghai Yi Pin Xuan Foodstuff Co.,
Ltd. ("Yi Pin Xuan”) (a related company, see details in Note
22(a)) for purchase of equipment (2014: RMB18,108,000). At
the date of this report, the above mentioned transactions are
still in progress.

—E-FF —T—F
2015 2014
ARETT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A cosT
FYIRER At the beginning and end of the year 20,147 20,147
BE IMPAIRMENT
RERARFERERRREEIE Impairment loss recognized in the year,
and at the end of the year (5,309) -
BREE CARRYING VALUES 14,838 20,147

ZEREERARBINSLRRBER 2B (MY
ttj)mo%f‘* BN LR BAFECRSELS
UzEE RZT—RAF+ZA=+—8 MMt
iﬁ%?iﬁuzﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ@%%% 85 B 5% LA
LEREEARE16,719,0000T - R-T—HE+ -
A=+—8 ' NSRS EELEN 2 KBS 5EG
T A ARE31,557,0007T - ERMI LIRS EAE
72 BRM & 58 A R % 36,866,0007T ° Wl - PAFARE
REEREARKS5,309,0007T °

The amount represents the goodwill arose from the
acquisition of 100% interest in Hangzhou Danbi
Food Co., Ltd. (“Hangzhou Danbi”), the Hangzhou
Danbi CGU in prior year. The carrying amount of the
Hangzhou Danbi CGU as at 31 December 2015 also
include property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets of RMB16,719,000. As at 31 December 2015,
the recoverable amount of the Hangzhou Danbi CGU
is assessed to be RMB31,557,000, which is lower than
the carrying amount of the Hangzhou Danbi CGU of
RMB36,866,000. Thus, impairment of goodwill of
RMB5,309,000 was recognized in the year.
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A E e EER T ZRBEKRMEIT

MINFHEEIR S EA S 2 P B S BIRBEREE

HEFE - ﬁf‘%ﬁ”A%ﬁHEéiiﬁﬁﬁt/ﬁx@%ﬂiﬁﬂ
MM REESE 2 RERERAKR14.0% (= —MN
% 13.8%)BHEEE - BB A iﬁﬁf‘aﬁzfﬁiméﬁﬁﬁ$
BEER(ZT—UF - 3%)HHE - IIEREENEGH
ﬁﬂﬁiﬁiﬁ‘ﬂﬂ CMAEBBERITECTHRER
RoFEFABEENZEMEER niﬁiiﬁimu)\//m
Hﬂﬁ.ﬁﬁ%ﬁ HABEEEHEERENE - B
AEMMMALReELEBU BARRREREYH
M5 R 2 TEEMIEL

BERAKIEERELNIELR - AJREELE —PRE
B8 o WA FFLL IR € E A B v TR E SH & B TR B
5% - MNP IR S EA BN 2 D E R KO SRS
BIEARY1,230,0007T © AN LIRS EA BN 2
BRIRREIBHE 1% - UNFALLREEABNUZERE
Ak [l & 58S R A R ¥ 1,574,0007T °

The basis of the recoverable amount and the major
underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of the Hangzhou Danbi
CGU has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of
14.0% (2014: 13.8%). The cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using zero steady growth
rate (2014: 3%). This increase rate is based on the
relevant inflation growth forecasts and does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculation relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows, including budgeted sales and gross margin,
which is based on the Hangzhou Danbi CGU's past
performance and management’s expectations for the
market development.

Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, further impairment loss may arise. If the
budgeted sales of the Hangzhou Danbi CGU are 5%
less than expected, the calculated recoverable amount
of the Hangzhou Danbi CGU will be RMB1,230,000
lower. If the discount rate of the Hangzhou Danbi
CGU is 1% higher than expected, the calculated
recoverable amount of the Hangzhou Danbi CGU will
be RMB 1,574,000 lower.

—REE R Annual Report 2015
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Bz

pa

hERZZE-—NE+_A=+—H r&H

b_/\\ 7
RIATE SR RER R -

Name of associate

P ERIEMOE (LB BR AR
(TP ZE3EMYE])

Aroma Coffee (Shanghai) Co.,

Ltd. (“Aroma Coffee”)

ZZ—AF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

—2-uF
2015
AR®T T
RMB’000

P—REEE AR 2 IE EMIEERZA  Cost of unlisted investment in an associate 1,916
MEBEER T - HBREWARE

Share of post-acquisition profits, net of dividends
received 409

2,325

interest in the following associate:

—ZE—MF
2014
ARBTIT
RMB’000

1,916

27

1,943

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group has

PR B R rEE
=P &R EiRiRE TEXK
Attributable

Place and date of equity interest

establishment Registered capital of the Group  Principal activity

Y 120,000,000 B [&] 25%  AERHEWBIEmR
ZEETREF
+TZRZ=ThH

PRC JPY 120,000,000 25%  Producing and selling
29 December 2006 coffee products

—ZT—REFEFH Annual Report 2015 T4 STEIBRIZR AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited

129



130

an\ /=~ jﬁ%#&%ﬁfj
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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A B NE TS ERRE

MEEE Current assets

JEMBEE Non-current assets

A& Current liabilities

EREEE Non-current liabilities

BEFE Net assets

2N 5= B AP 52 35 N E 2 Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest
P&t 2 L in Aroma Coffee

NS B AP FR IS MNE 2 Carrying amount of the Group's interest
iR EE in Aroma Coffee

FAMER Revenue for the year

F R Profit for the year

REBOGZBERTZ Group's share of profit of the associate for
F 1A 5 ) the year

—REE R Annual Report 2015

—
2015
AR®T T
RMB’000

13,964
2,027

(6,691)

9,300

25%

2,325

BZE
—E-AfF
+=A=+—8
LEE

Year ended
31/12/2015
ARET T
RMB'000

31,806
1,526

382

Summarised financial information of the associate:

—E—mE
2014
ARETFT
RMB’000

11,540

2,420
(6,186)

7,774

25%

1,943

HZE
—ZT—uE
+=ZA=+—8H
IHEE

Year ended
31/12/2014
ARBFIT
RMB‘000

39,027
2,655

663



an\ /|~ jﬁ%#&%ﬁfj
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT—AF+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

MRAFERBEFE  CHERATIZEELEREELEE(R The following are the major deferred taxation assets
B)RiEEEEHmT (liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during

the current and prior years:

% BE CRIEER

RATER B ARUGE KRtz EIEZ
JRIE  EREEER SRAE ERER EREE  AERER  ERREE A

Temporary

Temporary  differences

Withholding Bad debt differences of sales

taxon  Revaluation provision  of property,  recognised

undistributed  of intangible of trade plantand  and payroll  Unrealized Taxable

profits assets  receivables  equipment accruals Profit Losses Total

ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZE-ME-A—F  At1lanuary 2014 (21,910) (3,265) 154 1,003 17,480 230 18,003 11,695
PREEGABER  (Charge) credit to consolidated
H2EWARESR  statement of profitorloss and

(1B )zt A other comprehensive income
for the year - 207 216 119 (10,206) 6 - (9,65)
RZZ-MF At 31 December 2014
+-A=+-H (21,910) (3,058) 370 1122 1274 236 18,003 2,037

RAERFARER  (Charge) credit to consolidated
H2EWARED  statement of profit orloss and

(HIB)3EA other comprehensive income

for the year - 206 (270) 531 (1,650) (107) - (1,290)
RZZ-1%F At 31 December 2015
+-A=t-H (21,910) (2.852) 100 1,653 5,624 129 18,003 147
FREM I3RS g 2 R IBASR AT T - The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

—E-hfF —ZE—MF
2015 2014
AR¥T T ARBFIT
RMB*000 RMB*000
IRIEFHIEE B Deferred tax assets 25,001 25,636
ELEFEARE Deferred tax liabilities (24,254) (23,599)
747 2,037
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HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

STF

AEER-ZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HZXBEHE
JEET%?%/\E%%M%OOOE(_? Mg AR
290,364,0007T) + AJ IR EF - ERBBAE
BRERELEHBEEEAREKT72,014,0000(ZF—M
F+-_A=+—H: AR¥72,014,0007T) - @R E
EIEMS B2 AR IREFRIR - BB T AR
312,185,000 L ERELEHIBEE(ZT—NF : AR
%ms&owmﬂ c REBMBEBRENR-_ZE—X F2
“E-TFEERET

FH Year
—E—hF 2015
—E—REF 2016
—F 2017

= — \F 2018
—E-NF 2019
—E-FTF 2020

R-T-—AFR_F—NF  AEBELESBEMAHR
HEE

RZE—RAF+ZA=+—8 ' 25EHEREET
%&ﬂﬁZTmM§%§%ﬁAEMuawzme
(ZZ=—W4F : AR®71,087,0007T) » AT §E K R
A e AREATEME TR Z AR EFRR - v E
WRELEIEEE °

#HITEBRIER AR AT Christine International Holdings Limited ==

The Group has unutilized tax losses of
RMB384,199,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB290,364,000) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of RMB72,014,000 (31 December 2014
RMB72,014,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
assets has been recognised in respect of the remaining
RMB312,185,000 (2014: RMB218,350,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams of the
respective entities. The tax losses will expire from 2016
t0 2020 as follows:

—E-0fF —E—MmEF
2015 2014
AR®BTT AREETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
= 419

880 880

673 673
79,300 79,300
137,078 137,078
94,254 =
312,185 218,350

The Group has not utilized any tax losses in 2015 and
2014.

The Group has deductible temporary differences of
RMB125,052,000 (2014: RMB71,087,000) in respect of
depreciation and impairment of plant and equipment as
at 31 December 2015 available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams of the
respective entities.

—REE R Annual Report 2015
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Bz

ZZ—AF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

BIBCEMEHRE B -ZEEN\F—A—H# $F
Bt Ja8 2~ &) Bt BT R BN 2 v B 2R A% B IR 7S AN 7R 30
i o ARASE LG TR EREBERR  mMERE
BRI RARRAI e T &E At ER - —H
F+- A=+ BHEMBRRRBEFEG 2L
EZEEAHARES311,248,000t( ZZ—HF : ARK
302,750,0007T ) 7% F 81 15zt R VE L IR ERA TR B4 ©

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.
No deferred taxation has been provided in these
financial statements in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to the retained profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB311,248,000 (2014: RMB302,750,000) as at 31
December 2015 as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of such temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

—E-RfF —E—F
2015 2014
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B Raw materials 17,027 18,720
Bk R Finished goods 12,259 14,237
29,286 32,957
=F-IH%F i
2015 2014
AR¥T T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 EIE Trade receivables 17,172 17,640
B RARE Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (394) (1,479)
16,778 16,161
[ L FE P B K Advance to suppliers 4,328 4,141
T R TERE 2 FENTAERIE Prepaid lease payments for land and retail outlets 45,794 50,833
JEREA Prepaid expenses 207 162
H e Gk IE Other receivables 6,526 6,758
H b T U B 57 38 Other tax recoverable - 1,169
74,133 79,224
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HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

TXRNEREHRE S RUIA(GHIRREREE)
REZ A RS

IR Age

0E30K 0 to 30 days
31260K 31 to 60 days
61£290K 61 to 90 days
91E 180K 91 to 180 days
BB 180K Over 180 days

AEBEZEZREFEIZR/EEBERE BT R
BEHBEREITE A

AEBAFDHENRSETRABTREMNRE - R
AEBEBETEMEEENAREERLEEEY -
RBEERERBH 2 EEMEZHEMSRIEB—RTD
HEEREMETAEERS HE30E60RAHERIE 3
NTPAKE - HERSHBEEEARRI0KRA > BE
HEEERREITRBRRERIEEMEFRL RN
FTAKH -

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based
on the invoiced date at the end of each reporting
period:

—E-hF —ZE—MF
2015 2014
AR®BT T AREETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
12,338 13,661
348 773

381 449

3,205 910

506 368
16,778 16,161

The Group’s trade receivables are mainly due from
department stores, supermarkets and cash consumer
card issuers.

Most of the Group’s sales are conducted in cash or
prepaid by the customers. There is no credit period
for direct sales of the Group’s products from the
self-owned retail outlets. Sales proceeds from retail
outlets which are located in department stores and
supermarkets are normally collected and paid to the
Group by the department stores and supermarkets
within 30 to 60 days after the sales of the products.
Sales proceeds from cash consumer card are collected
and paid to the Group by the cash consumer card issuers
within 30 days after the sales of the products.

mRIAASTBIFRIER AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited —Z—FA % Annual Report 2015
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HE-ZT—AF+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

AEEBEREEREZAERE B RESHE
RETHZERARR ARZERERE - BH R
REHBERBETHEERFBEASEERIA (FR
% BAKEERERARAEBYEARERNGEER

(& o
AA

NEFBESREWFBEHBENR -_Z—AE+-A
=+—HEmELHEARE4100,0007T 2 FEKFRIAE
(ZZ—4F : AR¥1,700,00070) - RIREBEE -
ZERBECEY - AKER AR EELRERSER
o AEERAZSRFUER UL E o AL &
MRS ERBEEAERR o

TXREBBERREZE S RKTRZ R

ARER Age

61F90K 61 to 90 days
912180k 91 to 180 days
BiB180K Over 180 days

The Group will monitor and review the credit
conditions of the department stores, supermarkets
and cash consumer card issuers on a timely basis. The
Group’s management considers that the Group has
no significant credit risks because those department
stores, supermarkets and cash consumer card issuers
have good reputation and long term relationship with
the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB4.1 million as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB1.7 million), which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group considers these receivables
can be collected. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

The following is the aging of trade receivables which
are past due but not impaired:

—E-hfF —E—F
2015 2014
AR¥T T AREBT T
RMB'000 RMB’000
381 449
3,205 910
506 368

4,092 1,727

—E— R FFER Annual Report 2015 T Fi#45T BIFR =R AR A 7 Christine International Holdings Limited
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HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

REREME 2 &) - Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
—E-hF —E—NF
2015 2014
AR®T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
F47 Beginning of the year 1,479 614
BEZRGTA) MR 2B E (Credited) charged to profit or loss (1,085) 865
FR End of the year 394 1,479
) BrERE SRR E M 5 iR 2 BRI - AR (a) In addition to information disclosed elsewhere
SEEEFEA LT CBERIOT : in the consolidated financial statements, the

relationships between the Group and its related
parties are as follows:

=L BEARDNR 2 E@HR

Name Relationship with the Company

—m¥ HARAIEREAL AR GERRBEEF A=z~

Yi Pin Xuan A company controlled by Ms. Ching-Ying Huang Lo, who is a close member

of the family of Mr. Tien-An Lo, director of the Company

Christine Princess Co., (PTC) Ltd. NEREAREREBREEFBEARAREZFTEAT
([ Christine Princess )

Christine Princess Co., (PTC) Ltd. A trust company holding equity interest in the Company on trust for the
(“Christine Princess”) benefit of management employees.
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Bz

ZZ—AF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

(b) RIERR  AEBESEEALZREERS
FRIOT
—mEf Yi Pin Xuan
] 52 35 000 BE Aroma Coffee

Christine Princess Christine Princess

NEBE-REFEHBLE R E 580 EIREK
EARBRHEZBNAZE  FEHAEORAEERE
30K e RZZE—WE+=—A=+—1 ' AEEH
—mI 2 EHREREEEM2ES AR 40,300,000
T RERER -

R-ZB-AFR-_Z-WF+_A=+—H ' ~&HE
B FEIBUNTE 2 SRR R A 2 B SRR R

RZZB—RAFRZFT—NF+_A=+—0 ' ~5H
EAChristine PrincessZ 5B IFE 5L o

AR¥TT

(b) As at the end of the reporting period, the
Group has outstanding balances with the
related parties as follows:

REER FARSREEEHE

Maximum amount

Balance outstanding during the year
—F-HF —T-WOF —FT-HF —FT0OF
2015 2014 2015 2014
ARBTFT ARBFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
4,782 43,659 44,315 45,010
- 140 1,221 1,259
147 93 147 93

4,929 43,892

The balance with Yi Pin Xuan was trade-related
receivables for sales of materials with a credit period
of 30 days and prepayment for purchase of goods
and was aged within 30 days. The balance with Yi
Pin Xuan as at 31 December 2014 included a deposit
for purchase of goods of RMB40,300,000, which was
settled during the year.

The balance with Aroma Coffee as at 31 December
2015 and 2014 were trade-related prepayment for
purchase of materials.

The balance with Christine Princess as at 31 December
2015 and 2014 were non-trade in nature.
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TRIAASTBIFREREBR A F Christine International Holdings Limited =&

RZZT—RF+-_A=+—8 ZRHBETFAAR
#51,700,0007t (== — P44 : AR #¥40,189,0007T)
GERRITEARETERBEINR - —=F+=A4
ZHEHBEMZRAMBELBEITIRES 2K -

As at 31 December 2015, the restricted bank deposits
amounting to RMB51,700,000 (2014: RMB40,189,000)
are placed to bank as security for coupons issued
to customers according to the regulation issued by
Ministry of Commerce of the PRC on 27 December
2012.

—E-hfF —E—OF

2015 2014

AR¥T T ARBFIT

RMB*000 RMB’'000

FELTEBRRERES Unlisted managed investment fund 35,000 -

BREEFHRNTEETHEERARANES  &ERQ
AEMIEESRAR TEIMRE - RENBHMFN X
B12E - REGEREREGERET —F2/8 - A5
1ESERBEE -

RITESREBRSERRELRIABE B =EAHAR
ZIEEITERR -

RZZE—RF+-_A=+—8  BITEHEKBRLEN
?0.35%13.3%(_?_|7_El¢ 1 0.35%%3.3%) 25
FRRTS -

The investment represents funds placed into certain
licensed trust company in the PRC, which in turn
placed the funds in certain overseas investment. The
investment carries expected interest rates of 12% per
annum. The investment will mature over 1 year from
the end of the reporting period and are presented as
non-current asset.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less.

Bank balances and cash carry interest at market rates
ranging from 0.35% to 3.3% (2014: 0.35% to 3.3%)
per annum at 31 December 2015.

—REE R Annual Report 2015
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Bz

BB ENFIR

e TE RABH

HAGE TR

FEfT RS

HADRE (R R et &
W% - BERREZ
ANE

ZZ—AF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

Trade payables

Payroll and welfare payable
Other tax payable

Pension payable

Other payables and accruals

—2-uF

2015
AR®T T
RMB’000

56,424
23,679
2,379
2,883
29,116

Payables for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment

HER—MRGE TAEBISEOXREER - REHMEH
R REZRAHZIZEHENFORZIRE DTN

T~

ARk

0Z45K
46 60K
61E90K
91E180K
H8iB180K

Age

0 to 45 days
46 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
Over 180 days

6,987

121,468

—ZE—MF
2014
ARBTIT
RMB’000
63,471
20,081
11,769
3,188
39,577

4,484

142,570

The Group normally is allowed a credit term of 45 to 60
days by its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis
of trade payables presented based on the invoiced date

at the end of the reporting period:

—2-iF

2015
AR®T T
RMB’000

50,504
5,033
352

535

56,424

—E—MF
2014
ARBTIT
RMB’000

52,569
7,444
2,897

109
452

63,471
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HE-T—AF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

RERZEH - T—RF+-_A=+—H HA Among the deposit from customers, there
R #5489, 040,00071:(:’ M4 © AR¥6419,210,000 were approximately RMB489,040,000 (2014:
T AREA(BEAREREANENR)AG %5 RMB419,210,000) of coupon (including paper coupon

REAAREEMBREESIRESZHE ZSRE and pre-paid card) liabilities as at 31 December 2015,
%E{‘%Hjﬁ—\;aaf’ﬁféfé C WA AR R DA 7 = @) 7 which represented the balances of the coupons
iéﬂf’ﬂlﬁl* CHAEERIENREEEERERE issued and sold to the customers by the Group. Those

MTERZEINEHREANYERGRZERSEAU coupons are recorded as liabilities when sold and
)\ BRiIEESBEIN BRESHEEEEREAR released as revenue when redeemed by the customers
g 2 N B WA R EETME R BARE ° in exchange for products of the Group, or recognised

as other income after all contractual and constructive
obligations of the Group have been discharged after
taking into account an additional grace period granted
to customers after expiry. Other than coupon liabilities,
the remaining balance of deposit from customers
primarily represented the prepayment received from
corporates for bulk purchases and deposits from
individuals for made-to-order products.

(a) B4R AT ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ{’@i@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁg,z&ﬂﬁl\ ' (a) In addition to information disclosed elsewhere
REBEEBENT ZHEEIT in the consolidated financial statements, the

relationships between the Group and its related
parties are as follows:

=t R B 2 B R
Name Relationship with the Company
PEEERESERAR(ER]) HEFARFLEEHZA
Shanghai Meixin Trade Co., Ltd. A company controlled by a d|rector, Mr. Dun-Ching Hung
("Meixin")
RIEHEBERMERA HEFEMASERERGEES 2R
(TRIwED

Waujiang Shangpu Packaging Products A company controlled by a director, Mr. Chi-Ming Chou and his family
Co., Ltd. ("Wujiang Shangpu*)

FEESHAERAB(EE]D HRERABFAE REARGEES 22
Tongcan Trade Limited Company A company controlled by a director, Mr. Dun—Ching Hung and his family
(“Tongcan”)
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ZZ—AF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

(b) AMEHMR AEFEZBWEALZAREE

SR :

e

— &
RITHEE
[ 1%

F] 28 35 B

Meixin

Yi Pin Xuan
Woujiang Shangpu
Tongcan

Aroma Coffee

EHABESHHEE  FEEHNT45KEZ60RZME o AT

BREMEHRENBE

ARl
0E45K
46 60K
61E90K
91ZE180K
HEi8180K

RAEFIRLZRE DT

Age

0 to 45 days
46 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
Over 180 days

Total

(b) As at the end of the reporting period, the
Group has outstanding balances with the

related parties as follows:

=

2015
AR®T T
RMB‘000

3,817
1,049
1,237
2,060

34

8,197

—F-EF
2014
ARBTIT
RMB‘'000

3,124
845
2,406
742

7,117

The balances are trade in nature with a credit term
ranging from 45 days to 60 days. The following is an
aged analysis of amounts due to related companies at

the end of each reporting period.

=

2015
AR®T R
RMB‘000

6,124
2,054

19

8,197

—E—OF
2014
ARET T
RMB’000

6,297
800

7,117
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STF

REEWHF BN AEE—BM2EHBARRZ

—ZFP AEEFBAARE,245,000 T AR EE
EREHREMEX A MEBX - @EPEpESE
FETREREREXN BB 2 2ELIAR1,342,000

TERFBRESEE - T——F+-A=1+—HI&E
EZI8F PR - s7%8 AR ¥4,903,0007T BB © I

BREBEENFERFHRNEEITER - HARKE
506,000t ERBE—T—RF+_A=+—HBItFE
FFABR(ZZ—F : AREES506,0007T) ©

JEE Authorised
FH) R FFR0.0000175 7T

BEZ7TREE
FY) R FRGREE0.000018 7T

#HITEBRIER AR AT Christine International Holdings Limited ==

At beginning and end of year at HK$0.00001

Pursuant to a notice from the local government, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group was granted
a subsidy of approximately RMB6,245,000 in April
2010 in order to compensate for the expenditures and
losses arising from the dismantlement and relocation
of the plant. Approximately RMB1,342,000 of the
subsidy that relates to the compensation of suspension
of operation and decoration cost of the old plant
was recognised in profit or loss in the year ended 31
December 2011 upon dismantlement and relocation.
The remaining RMB4,903,000 has been deferred and
would be recognized in profits or loss over the useful
lives of the relevant assets. Approximately RMB506,000
has been released to profit and loss in the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: RMB506,000).

RHEE

Number

of shares
“E-REFR
—E—mEF
2015 & 2014

TR
‘000

10,000,000

Issued and fully paid

At beginning and end of year
at HK$0.00001each

—REE R Annual Report 2015

RHEE
Number

of shares
—E-HFR
—ZE—MF
2015 & 2014

1,010,188,000

IR

Share capital
—E-HFR
—E—mEF
2015 & 2014
ARBTT
RMB’000



an\ /|~ jﬁ%#&%ﬁfj
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bz

ZZ—AF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

MARBRBHA-_T——F-_A+HEZBRSIEMFE
i BRARBERIRD RENETE([ARHh ZEhETE])
RERARBEERERETSE([ERETE ) ER
ARIIEER Christine Princess Co. (PTC) Ltd.(fChristine
PrincessJ)EAfﬁ——i‘F*ﬁ — B R IRR
BREZSHE e R IR ETRERE ZER - X
B ERRRASNEEIEL TR o RO EEIFEIRE
A& ST 2] K Christine Princessi§ BT AN A & 2 IR A I
MEET R ZER S RIBRET B E BB EE -

a) RUPEEEE

LEWRl - RZE—=F—A+/\8 ' Christine
PrincessF#56,375,000l K A A RIEA RMHER
BAR G0 REN TS RE) T2 B EES - IRIBRMD
REGTEI MR O o REH B R 2 B eE
BE=F  FHEE ARATEHESUE
fth 77 R IR AR 1) - ERE RN BEEE
HHRI SR ERTREEFBEZ225% °

REXBSERARNR - SFRNEEERETE
Z DA TFEAET,276,0008 TT(HHERARKE
5,923,0007T) ©

 E_T—hF+-_A=+—HLFE £&
B 5 ATiR R SR FER I T 4858 AR 520,000
TT(ZZF—F : AR¥492,0007T) °

As detailed in prospectus of the Company dated 10
February 2012, a pre-IPO share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) and a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) were approved
and adopted by Christine Princess Co. (PTC) Ltd.
(“Christine Princess”), a shareholder of the Company,
on 27 December 2011. The schemes have been
granted to recognise and acknowledge the contribution
of certain employees and to encourage their future
contribution to the Group. The Share Award Scheme
and Share Option Scheme would involve the transfer
of existing shares held by Christine Princess in the
Company to eligible participants under the Share
Award Scheme and the Share Option Scheme.

a) Share Award Scheme

Prior to the Listing, on 18 January 2012,
6,375,000 existing shares of the Company
held by Christine Princess were awarded to
the eligible employees under the Share Award
Scheme. The shares awarded under the Share
Award Scheme are subject to a lock-up period
of three years commencing from the date of
award during which the grantee shall not sell
or otherwise dispose of the awarded shares,
with a transfer price of 25% of the last audited
net asset value per share immediately before
the date of award.

The fair values of the shares determined at the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing
model were HK$7,276,000 (equivalent to
RMB5,923,000).

The Group recognised the total expenses of
RMB20,000 for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: RMB492,000) in relation to share
award granted.
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b)

BRESE

B B A2 8 Christine Princess Ff 3% & 1t
17,003,200 8 AR RIIR B B 0 2 FE AR AR IR FE
RAEFTEIE T A EKES - RIBEARERTEIFT
BHEREy EERAEREEEERER D
EHBTARRSF - FILHE  mARARS
CHERESNEEESHE M@  £=/ £
BRFEREEFBSHEB25% @ WAl NEHEF
HEARRAT — T T{E o

REHASHEA-BEAENETE 2RHD M
A% HE A T {E 514,039,000 7T (FHE R A R
11,428,0007T) ©

TRIAASTBIFREREBR A F Christine International Holdings Limited =&

b)

Share Option Scheme

On the same date, options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 17,003,200 existing shares of
the Company held by Christine Princess were
granted to the eligible employees under the
Share Option Scheme. The options subject
to the Share Option Scheme are subject to a
vesting period of five years commencing from
the date of grant of such options during which
25% of the options granted to a grantee
will vest on each of the second, third, fourth
and fifth anniversary of the date of grant
and be exercisable within one year from such
anniversary.

The fair values of the shares and options
determined at the date of grant using the
Binomial model were HK$14,039,000
(equivalent to RMB11,428,000).

—REE R Annual Report 2015
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b) IEARRESTEI(E) b) Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)
TRINFAEEREEMF AR BIBRELS The table below discloses the movement of the
Company'’s share options held by the Group's
employees:
BREHE
number of Share options
—E-—AfF —ET-F
2015 2014
TR F &
‘000 ‘000
R—A—B&KRITE Outstanding as at 1 January 10,991 14,351
F R Forfeited during the year (3,639) (3,360)
BEt Total 7,352 10,991
ARG EBRREATEZBRRAT - The following assumptions were used to

calculate the fair value of share options:

IR AR

Option type
—E——F —EB——F —EB-——fF -
AE B (@] D¥
2012A 2012B 2012C 2012D
RHBBZRE 1.607 7T 1.607 7T 1.607 7T 1.607 7T
Grant date share price HK$1.60 HK$1.60 HK$1.60 HK$1.60
TEE 0.807%& 7T 0.80/ 7T 0.80/8 7T 0.80/ 7T
Exercise price HK$0.80 HK$0.80 HK$0.80 HK$0.80
B 25 3F A% 54F
Option life 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years
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b) BRETEE

TREERENEZNFAMFARRBRE

29 -

R IERR R -

“T-FAfR
“E——FBf
“E-CFCHE
—T—_%Df

RERITE

IEFHITEE
(%7T)

Option Type:
2012A
20128
2012C
2012D

Exercisable at the end
of the year

Weighted average
exercise price (HKD)

TRIAASTBIFREREBR A F Christine International Holdings Limited =&

R-B-EF
—A—H

5 RATEE
Outstanding
as at
1/1/2015

2,747,747
2,747,747
2,747,747
2,747,747

10,990,988

0.8

Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

The following table discloses movements of the
Company'’s share options held by employees

and director during the year.

EREZE

Number of options

FRFEH ERTHE FRRNR

Granted Exercised Forfeited
during during during
the year the year the year
- - 2,747,747
- - 297,049
- - 297,049
- - 297,049
- - 3,638,894

TERm N
N/A N/A 0.8

—REE R Annual Report 2015

R-E-1F
+=A
=t+—H

i RATEE
Outstanding
as at
31/12/2015

2,450,698
2,450,698
2,450,698

7,352,094

2,450,698

0.8
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b)

BRESHE (E)

TEES
29 -

BREREEREFHF/ARABRE

ZZ—AF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

RZT—mF
—HA—H
BARITHE
Outstanding
as at
1/1/2014
AR ELRR - Option Type:
—T-—FAB 2012A 3,587,294
—ZT——FBRiF 20128 3,587,294
“E-FCH 2012C 3,587,294
—T—-FDf 2012D 3,587,294
14,349,176
RERITE Exercisable at the end
of the year
METITEE Weighted average exercise
(&) price (HKD) 0.8

EFE—RAF+-_A=t+—HLFE " K
SEEREBERERIARIBAEARE
916,000 7T (=T — P 4F : AR ™ 1,407,000
JC) ©

b)

Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)
The following table discloses movements of the
Company'’s share options held by employees
and director during prior year.
BREYE
Number of options
—mE
+=A
=+—H
FRRE FRITRE FRRU RIARTTEE
Granted Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding
during during during as at
the year the year theyear  31/12/2014
= = 839,547 2,747,747
- — 839,547 2,747,747
- - 839,547 2,747,747
- - 839,547 2,747,747
- - 33581838 10,990,988
2,747,747
TEA RiE M
N/A N/A 0.8 0.8

The Group recognised the total expenses of
RMB916,000 for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: RMB1,407,000) in relation to
share options granted.

T —HEFEHR Annual Report 2015 = Fi#4 5T EFR =GR A F Christine International Holdings Limited
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REBEEREBEA The Group as lessee

—E-hF TN
2015 2014
AR%T ARBFIT
RMB‘000 RMB’'000

FRNRBLLTHEERAEZTEPIE  Minimum lease payments made in respect of

XA 2 AR E R rented retail outlets under operating leases
during the year 174,288 194,587
BEAitka Contingent rentals 1,281 2,344
175,569 196,931
ETMEzREHeRERREESIIRIPERTE The operating lease rentals of certain outlet stores
ZHEPIZREEEE - RREHR - AEERET are determined based on the higher of a minimum
AIRESEREANATEHRARBEEZTEM L X guaranteed rental or a rate based on sales. At the end
ZARRGIEBENZAT of the reporting period, the Group was committed to

make the following future minimum lease payments in
respect of rented retail outlets under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

—E-hfF —ET—OF

2015 2014

AR¥T T ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB*000

—F R Within one year 73,800 103,416
FE_ZERF(BEEEMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 135,635 195,400
RFLAE After five years 15,708 7,463
225,143 306,279

T EREEREEATES WM ERAERHE The above lease commitments represent basic rents
ETTEMERMNZEHAAEL - —RMs © ZFXAR only and do not include contingent rents payable in
e RAETELL R ERMPIE 2 EEBETE - 18 respect of certain retail outlets leased by the Group.
(et EEENSAEE S B NIERITT © In general, these contingent rents are calculated with

reference to the turnover of relevant outlets using pre-
determined rate. It is not practicable to estimate in
advance the amount of such contingent rent payable.
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ZZ—AF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

FEBESEEA

FR - AEBE—REFRTHBLHE (M E37(a)) BTk
BzfHe WA A ARKE1,080,000c(ZF—M4FE : A
R #51,080,0007T) ©

R R - AREERERR TIARREREN
T -

The Group as lessor

Rental income earned by the Group from sub-lease
arrangement with Yi Pin Xuan (Note 37(a)) during the
year was RMB 1,080,000 (2014: RMB1,080,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

—E-hfF —E—OF
2015 2014
ARET T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 1,080 1,080
E_ZERF(BEEEMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,080 2,160
2,160 3,240
—E-AF —T—mF
2015 2014
ARET T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BRIAERI R E TS IRE Capital expenditure contracted for but not
TEBRKEDE  BEN provided in the consolidated financial
BRI BRI statements in respect of the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment 21,919 40,644

RBERR - AEELEBEARAREIE -

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at
the end of the reporting period.

T —REER Annual Report 2015 THRIZSTEIBRIER AR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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FENBAGRZEEHATRABMEEZEARERE
REFFEIKE - FEMBARERESF KRN ZIE
TE B9 LR ENG SIEL R - UAEBERFIR
HES - REBERKEF 8 2 —ETNAED
BEZER -R-ZE—AF+-_A=1+—8 HEAH
2 FERHRIRE R B A AR 2,883,000 (=
ZT—OF : AR¥3,188,0007T) °

AEBEEREBEAUBRRASEE TS EEEIHE
gE - MR EBBRCERMESERRERA
O - BEFE  AEBZBERRENEZD A&
B2 ERRBERREBRARTEE ANEHRR (B
BEEITRA - BEIRERN)

AEBEEREGREEMEARE - (FREMES—
iy EREEREARARAGBSRERZER
AEBEEEMBERMBE  BTHREETES
(HFER) FEERERERRE -

Employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specified percentage of their
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the specified contributions. As at 31 December 2015,
the outstanding payable for retirement benefit scheme
contributions amounted to RMB2,883,000 (2014:
RMB3,188,000).

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
earnings.

The Group’s management reviews the capital
structure on a timely basis. As part of this review, the
management considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. The Group’s
management will balance its overall capital structure
through payment of dividend, new share issues and the
issue of debt if necessary.

mRIAASTBIFRIER AR A F Christine International Holdings Limited —Z—FA % Annual Report 2015



ara I AR TR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT—AF+=-A=1+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

(a)

(b)

ERTRER

ERMEE
B e R IR
(BRERE MRS EEY)

AR ERE
s@Mas Financial liabilities
BSEA A Amortised cost

MEREEEERBE

AEBEZIZSRTABRES REMBUYR
B HeEre  RITEHLAS - XRHIRT
3 AIHHESREE  B5REMENK
BEREW (B BEQARRBRENRE « %
FERMTAZFBENBRBMERE - TXHT
HZEFTRTAEAR AR R INFAFEHEZE R
BCHEK  EEEURERARETERERE
7 AREREESARE RBEMZ T A BEE
=R

FRE R

AEBAEZNEZABRER - RERAEEL
EAREMEE BBE(RTEBLEMESR
BERIN) - BERMNEXESH BB ARE 2
RXEELEARE  RERAKEZFEEIRT
‘R EMeREESBEHEE - Fit - X
B2 M RGFREDH

Financial assets
Loans and receivables (including cash and
cash equivalents)

(a)

Available-for-sales investments

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

—E—EF —E g4
2015 2014
AR¥T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB000
674,312 628,409
35,000 =
92,162 100,754

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group's major financial instruments
include trade and other receivables, rental
deposit, bank balances and cash, restricted
bank deposits, available-for-sale financial
assets, trade and other payables and amounts
due from (to) related companies and dividend
payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group has limited exposure to interest
rate risk because the Group has no interest-
bearing financial assets/liabilities other than
bank balances and other financial assets. The
future variations in interest rates will not have a
significant impact on the results of the Group,
as the Group's variable-rate bank balances
and other financial assets are all short-term in
nature. Therefore, no interest rate sensitivity
analysis is presented.
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(b)

MBEREEEFERBERE)

B EE

REBAEZINERR T ERREBABTTA
@Zﬂﬁ#%éi BRABTTARHEZ RITH
G E%FﬁiﬁilﬁuﬁﬁﬁﬁZE
ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ééﬁﬁﬁ°

RZB—RE+-_A=1+—08  xEEUBT
FHEZRITHEMREEEELY B ARE47,007,000
TT(ZZE—N4EF : AR¥46,161,0007T) °

AEE B A EINEEREEK - BEARBES
HONERBATEYEE  IRNFERZSE
B ARINERR -

RERE DM A EBE N AR B TH
BEREES%(ZF—HF : 5% ) HEKE -
REREIREE R INEE RSB REF E AT
o BRAESMEREEERE BRUINEST
@mﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ<ﬁ&a¥ﬁﬁﬁﬁm
FEHMAKRER) - MARBEBTHAEXRZE
5%(ZZF—MF : 5%) - BrEI&EIEBEMN
B ARE2,350,0000( = F—0F : ARE
2,308,0007T) °

TRIAASTBIFREREBR A F Christine International Holdings Limited =&

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Cont'd)

Currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk
is arising mainly from the bank balances of the
Group which are denominated in HK$. Except
for the bank balances denominated in HK$, the
group entities did not have any other monetary
assets or liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank
balances that are denominated in HK$ as
at 31 December 2015 are approximately
RMB47,007,000 (2014: RMB46,161,000).

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy but the directors of the
Company monitor foreign exchange exposure
by closely monitoring the foreign exchange risk
profile and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

This sensitivity analysis details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% (2014: 5%) increase and
decrease in RMB against HK$ which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currencies denominated monetary
items as at the end of reporting period assuming
they were outstanding for the entire year.
There will be an increase/decrease in post-tax
loss of RMB2,350,000 (2014: RMB2,308,000)
where RMB strengthen/weaken 5% (2014: 5%)
against HK$.

—REE R Annual Report 2015
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(b)

MBEREEEFERBERE)

FERE

AEBRHF I RERTETERAKEES
MBEBEEMAX 2&SEERRIREHFAME
RRR D HIFER 2 2R EEREE

REBERMHHEAR S HETTRN T
7 AEEZESEREFAIZSEKAER
ERBREHERBITH A

AEEREEEEENECAERELRS
HEBERBEITRZERMR « 1o REBZH
BB EEREEMENRR 2HER
& o ARBERIRE HIRRET H A SRR UK
B2 AW EERE - LRSI E S5 E
RIBERE - L5 ARAREERAS
AEBZEERBRFAKBRE o 26 85K
MRPIREREHBRRECREREG(E) - B
THRASEEREEREBEBERREBEHER
BRI MBS -

RAEEE e RAERBITRBEL Y Y
RRME - ARRSHFHACREEZ B
BT AkAEEAREXSHFROZ EE
RRAR -

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statements
of financial position.

Most of the Group’s sales are conducted in
cash or prepaid by the customers. The Group'’s
trade receivables are primarily due from
department stores and cash consumer card
issuers.

The Group will closely monitor and review the
credit conditions of the department stores and
cash consumer card issuers on a timely basis.
In addition, the Group’s other receivables
primarily consist of rental deposits which have
a low risk of default. The Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual other
receivable at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that
the Group'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
The amounts presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position are net of
allowances for doubtful receivables, if any,
estimated by the Group’s management based
on prior experience and their assessment of the
current economic environment.

With respect to credit risk arising from the
other financial assets and bank balances of
the Group, the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from the default of counterparties is
limited as the counterparties are state-owned
banks located in the PRC.
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(b)

MBEREEEFERBERE)

EEmE(E)

AEBEFRREHBTZRBECHEETEE
R - AT - RITEBRZEERRER - RE
ARBNZZEFREBRFRLARFE
B R ZIRTT

AEBEYEEMEACEERRETIER 8
REBABREER5HF MER -

REBESEME

EXReRATERDESRRZKREME M
%%ﬁELI*ﬂAﬁZﬁEEéHAﬁ@E

CRNEEREAREEES  PHEERESR
m@éé BHREK - AEEBBRFTRR ZH
- ROTEEURFEHTRALERRSRE
ETER  BUBERBESER -

RBEERASERE

TREANAEERFERRETESHEE
ZHRTAHEHA - TRBBAEE AR
RZE&RAMAAEZERAERBARDR
EfRR -

TRIAASTBIFREREBR A F Christine International Holdings Limited =&

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group has concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds which are deposited with several
banks. However, the credit risk on bank
balances is limited because the majority of the
counterparties are banks with good reputation
and/or good credit rating.

The Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a large number of counterparties
and customers.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities, and by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non
derivative financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay.

—REE R Annual Report 2015
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(b) HMBEEBREEESERBEGE)

RBEERISEABEKRGE)

RZB-RF+ZA=1-A
FTESREE
BHRAMENFE
EREELANE

EftiRE

R-E2-BE+ZA=1-H
FTEERAR
BHREBEMNTE
EREERAE

EfRE

31 December 2015
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Amount due to related companies

Dividend payable

31 December 2014
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Amount due to related companies

Dividend payable

METEH
ERAZ
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
%

&R
N/A
TER
N/A
TER
N/A

NER
NA
oyl
N/A
TEm
NA

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Cont'd)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Cont'd)

RERY
SR

On demand
or less than
1month

ARETR
RMB'000

79,257
8,197

4,708

92,162

88,929
7

4,708

100,754

1£3(8A

1-3 months

ARETR
RMB'000

MEAEIE

3 months
to 1year

ARBTR
RMB'000

BB
REnAE

Total
undiscounted
cash flows

ARBTR
RMB'000

79,257
8,197

4,708

92,162

88,929
M7

4,708

100,754

RafE

Carrying
amount

N AR
RMB'000

79,257
8,197

4,708

92,162

88,929
7

4,708

100,754
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(c) SRTEAFHE (d) Fair value of financial instruments
RNEEINEREERSHREHRIZA T E Some of the Group's financial assets are
£ o "RIBREABEREA L EFENE AZIE measured at fair value at the end of each
M BREENNETZSeREECATE reporting period. The following table gives
(ERI2FEENEERTE REASE) KA information about how the fair values of these
EEAEMES ZAFERRIKE(—E=LR) financial assets are determined (in particular,
2B} o the valuation technique(s) and inputs used),

as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements
are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.
AVEHEER/
SRER RTI5IRENATE ATERE  HERNRIZHAHE
Fairvalue  Basis of fair value measurement/
Financial item Fair value as at hierarchy  valuation technique(s) and key inputs
R=F-1% R-F-RF
t=A=t-R +ZA=t-H
31December 31 December
2015 2014
ARBT T ARET
RMB'000 RMB'000
HEESHAE Available-for-sales finanial 35,000 & FZHh RURRERE  AXBRERENBER
assets nil Level2  EMFBEHMEMEE -

BRBHERANIRZEREERERBEIQF
ERBENEAREARENIMIAREER
A ERENTSAERERSZEBIREE -

EEZRA  NREMBHRRANZEHEKATIR
ZEREERERABREEELQFER

e

= o

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
are estimated based on expected interest
rate of the investment.

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities at amortised cost are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices from observable current market
transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair value.
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(a) REA - BREEMBERERNERBEIZIN - & (a) During the year, except as disclosed elsewhere
SEEBEALTEIIVATRS in the consolidated financial statements, the

Group entered into the following transactions

with rel

BEEMRER Purchase of goods and materials
—xz - Meixin
— P ERF50NEE — Aroma Coffee
——mE —Yi Pin Xuan
—RTi#A - Wujiang Shangpu
—hAa EEHERAR (M) — Marubeni Shanghai Co., Ltd. (Note)
— A& - Tongcan
HERH Sales of materials
—REf —Yi Pin Xuan
—R& —Tong Can
BEWE  BERRKH Purchase of property, plant and
equipment
——mE —Yi Pin Xuan
HEME - BERRE Sales of property, plant and equipment
——m¥f —Yi Pin Xuan
REFERAS WA Rental income from operating leases
— AR Ef —Yi Pin Xuan

AEBENF T REERKIT L LABEAL

ated parties:

—E—hHF
2015

AR®T R
RMB’000

14,850
1,126
112,500
12,826

5,592

146,894

5,056

78

5,134

142

1,080

—E—OF
2014
AREBTIT
RMB’000

17,954
1,504
124,174
12,487
28,885
5,716

190,720

4,481

4,481

23

1,071

1,080

The Group entered into the above related party

R transactions upon the prices agreed with the
counterparties.

Mz : BRRALLEERARNR-E—MFEAA=+MA Note:
AIRBEAL  MEHETZZGM_FT—NF—
A—BRE-T-—NMFAA-+=AL-

T — R4 Annual Report 2015

The transaction with Marubeni Shanghai Co., Ltd.
was from 1 January 2014 to 23 September 2014,
since it was a connected party before 24 September

2014.
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(b) EEEEAESME

ARREFERAKERMEREEABNER

(b) Key management compensation

The remuneration of directors of the Company

ZEHMIT and other members of key management of the
Group during the year was as follows:

—E-—AfF —ET-F

2015 2014

AR%T R ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

HEAZGS - 2B NEF Basic salaries, allowances and benefits 3,386 4,085

EiEEER Post-employment benefit 129 180

VARR 19 AR 28 2 3k Share-based payments 127 771

3,642 5,036

TREREABFMHEEREAERL T HBE
BRETE -

TRIAASTBIFREREBR A F Christine International Holdings Limited =&

The remuneration of key management is
determined having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.
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R|REHR - AEEHBA

WEAREE

Name of subsidiary

Christine BVI*

Christine BVI*

ZREREEERATF

Deluxe International Holdings
Limited

LERAHT

Shanghai Christine

EETE

Shanghai Ji Yuan De

HERFHT

HEZMRMBRAF

Shanghai Sweet Art Foodstuff
Co., Ltd.

R R AT

Nanjing Christine

AL BB -

Bl A
Rt E R B
Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

RBRAHS
([REBEZEHS])
—Z2Z)\E=A+—H
British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
11 March 2008

BE
—EENF-A+tH
Hong Kong

17 January 2008

FEINEEELR
(MEEELR))
—NMA=F—-AThHA

PRC as a wholly— owned foreign
investment enterprise (“WOFE")

19 January 1993

FRIAERE
—N=F+—ANR
PRC as a domestic enterprise
8 November 1993

FENERE

i N A =

PRC as a domestic enterprise
6 June 2006

PRI EELE

= kS R AN=

PRC as a sino foreign equity
joint venture enterprise

18 July 2002

T —REER Annual Report 2015 THRIZSTEIBRIER AR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

Details of the Group's subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are set out below.

BRTR

BRRE EREX
Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

lleNESH

Share capital US$1

A% 251,001 7T

Share capital
HK$1,001

ERIZEN
12,970,000%7T

Registered capital
US$12,970,000

afERARE
107,271,2167C

Registered capital
RMB107,271,216

AMERARE
5,000,0007T
Registered capital

RMB5,000,000

AMER
54,800,000% 7T

Registered capital
US$54,800,000

REEEERE
W+=BA=t+—H
Attributable equity
interest of the Group
At 31 December

—E-R1F —

2015
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

—mF

2014
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

TEEH

Principal activity

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

TERHEREER

Producing and selling
bakery products

EERHERBER

Producing and selling
bakery products

AERHEREER

Producing and selling
bakery products

EERHERBER

Producing and selling
bakery products
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AL BRITR REBELRE

MEATERE R BR A BRREEMEX R+=A=t—H TEEH
Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable equity
incorporation/ paid share capital/  interest of the Group

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital At 31 December Principal activity

ZE-0F —TMF
2015 2014

HEgIES FESNE BB R HMERARE 100% 100% HEREEMREER
—ANNE=ZR+NR 30,000,0007T

Shuang Hong Bakery PRC as a WOFE Registered capital 100% 100%  Producing and selling
18 March 1998 RMB30,000,000 bakery products

TN FERERE AR 100% 100% 4ERHEREER
—ANNFREATAR 1,406,000 7T

Hangzhou Danbi PRC as a domestic enterprise Registered capital 100% 100%  Producing and selling
19 May 1998 US$1,406,000 bakery products

PETHRRERAF FENERE &R 100% 100% HELBER
—Z-ZF=H=H AR#100,0007T

Shanghai Keli Foodstuff Co., Ltd. PRC as a domestic enterprise Registered capital 100% 100%  Selling bakery products
3 March 2010 RMB100,000

LEARESBRAR BEE_TT=F1+—AWA  KZ100,000% T 100% 100% REER

Jinda International Trade Co. Ltd. Hong Kong Share capital 100% 100%  Investment holding
4 November 2003 HK$100,000
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HMREL, BETR REBELRE

MEATERE M2 R A BRRAEEMER R+=BA=t—H TEEH
Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable equity
incorporation/ paid share capital/  interest of the Group

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital At 31 December Principal activity

—E-0F —TMF
2015 2014
MNRFHTRRAERDA REISNEEE AMER 100% 100% HEREEREER
“ET=F+-A+tR 20,000,0003 7T
Hangzhou Christine Foodstuff ~ PRC as a WOFE Registered capital 100% 100%  Producing and selling
Co., Ltd 17 November 2003 US$20,000,000 bakery products
ERRAKTRRAERAT RENEEBRE AMERARE 100% 100% AERHEEMEER
—E-ME=A+NH 25,000,0007T
Ningbo Christine Foodstuff Co.,  PRC as a WOFE Registered capital 100% 100%  Producing and selling
Ltd 19 March 2014 RMB25,000,000 bakery products
@?ﬁﬂ%J RERE FEINEBE AMERARE 100% TER EEREEREER
AR “E-RFETHACTH 5,000,0007T
Nanjing Christine Catering PRC as a WOFE Registered capital 100% N/A  Producing and selling
Management Co., Ltd 20 October 2015 RMB5,000,000 bakery products
* BARNREERE * Directly held by the Company

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during the year or at the end of the year.

BB B R RN FARFERD BITEAERES °
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STF

FRBEE
SEIIE NG 5

RBEE
RITHRESBEIRE

RBRE
AN
HitREBIE

RBEEFHE
BEBERRB AR
BEXRfEE

B
fFEf

ARRHER NEEER

—E-AF
t+=A=+—-H
31/12/2015
AR¥T T
RMB'000
Non-current assets
Interest in subsidiaries 185,450
Current assets
Bank balances and cash 60,692
Current liabilities
Dividend payable 4,708
Other current liabilities 829
5,537
Net current assets 55,155
Total assets less current liabilities 240,605
Capital and reserves
Share capital 8
Reserve 240,597
Total equity attributable to
owners of the Company 240,605

#TEIRR IR SR AR Christine International Holdings Limited =2 — R4 4%} Annual Report 2015

—E—-E
tZA=+—H
31/12/2014
AREET T
RMB'000

135,397

110,368

4,708
829

5,537

104,831

240,228

240,220

240,228
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R-F—MFE-A—BZ2&H
iW%E&%ﬁﬁiwﬁ

WZE-—mOF+-A=+—H
R

RZE—RF—A—BZ&AR
gm/ﬁﬁfljﬁiﬁ
WA 58

R-ZB—hF+-_A=+—H
Z FEER

Movement in reserve:

Balance at 1 January 2014
Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year

Balance at 31 December 2014

Balance at 1 January 2015
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at 31 December 2015

B

Share
capital
AR¥TR
RMB’000

8

BOBER
EE
Share
premium and
accumulated
results

ARBT
RMB’000

241,301

(1,081)

240,220

240,220

377

240,597

Total

AR®T
RMB’000

241,309

(1,081)

240,228

240,228

377

240,605

T —REER Annual Report 2015 THRIZSTEIBRIER AR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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—E——fF
2011
ARBT T
RMB’000
ES Results
Wea Revenue 1,384,351
B A5 B ) (E18) Profit (loss) before taxation 129,997
Frisfif sz Income tax expense (34,176)
FREM(ER) & Profit (loss) and total
ZHEIRA (EBE) @58 comprehensive income
(loss) for the year 95,821
LA AL - Attributable to:
ZN/NGIE 2PN Owners of the Company 95,821
—T—F
2011
ARETTT
RMB’000
EEREE Assets and liabilities
wEE Total Assets 1,756,286
BEeE Total Liabilities 920,562
835,724
NATEA AFE(EREZS  Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 835,724

BE+T-A=1T—HLEFE

Year ended 31 December
—E-—F ZE=-=fF CZZNF
2012 2013 2014
ARBTT ARETT ARETET
RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB’'000

1,388,032 1,379,767 1,253,110

29,525 (21,605) (135,960)
(9,440) (15,810) (14,825)
20,085 (37,415) (150,785)
20,085 (37,415) (150,785)
W+=-—A=+—H”

As at 31 December
—T——F —ET—=F —T—NOF
2012 2013 2014
ARETT AREFT ARETT
RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000

2,048,320 1,853,005 1,538,138

904,070 776,258 610,277
1,144,250 1,076,747 927,861
1,144,250 1,076,747 927,861

—E—REFH Annual Report 2015

—E-H%F

2015
ARMT T
RMB’000

1,061,750
(146,051)
(2,300)

(148,351)

(148,351)

—E-RF
2015

AR®TR
RMB’000

1,435,797

655,351

780,446

780,446
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